Public Document Pack

Adult Commissioning Committee
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Tom Stannard
Chief Executive
DATE:

Wednesday, 11 May 2022

TIME:

2.00 pm

VENUE:

Microsoft Teams Meeting

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
FACE TO FACE PUBLIC MEETINGS AT THE SALFORD SUITE ADVICE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC (UPDATED 01.03.22)
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest

3

Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 9th March 2022

(Pages 1 - 4)

(Pages 5 - 10)

ITEMS FOR DECISION
4

None
ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE

5

Finance Report - Phil Kemp

(Pages 11 - 16)

6

6 monthly Planning and Risk update

(Pages 17 - 50)

7

Draft Integrated Commissioning Plan 2022/23

(Pages 51 - 78)

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION
8

Adult Commissioning Report - Neil Cudby/ Harry Golby/ Judd
Skelton

(Pages 79 - 84)

9

Locality Governance arrangements

(Pages 85 - 100)

10

Dates of Future Meetings

All meetings to commence at 14:00, with the venue to be confirmed:
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday

15 June 2022
13 July 2022
14 September 2022
12 October 2022
9 November 2022
11 January 2023
8 February 2023
8 March 2023
10 May 2023

Confirmation will be provided nearer the time as to whether the
meetings are to be held remotely or face-to-face.

Contact Officer:
Chris Howl, Democratic Services Officer

E-Mail:

chris.howl@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Annex
Face to face public meetings in The Salford Suite at the Civic
Centre
Face to face public meetings have been held in The Salford Suite in the Old Town
Hall Building at the Civic Centre from Wednesday 1st September 2021.
The Salford Suite is the only available room that is large enough to hold meetings in
line with Covid safe guidelines, as advised by Public Health. Your safety is our
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective
decision making.
This briefing note outlines the arrangements in place and the guidelines that we
request that all attendees at our meetings are asked to follow to and keep everyone
as safe as possible while infection rates remain high.
1. General guidelines for meetings
a. We are holding most public decision making meetings in the Salford Suite but it is
not possible at this time to hold the meetings of the Council, Licensing and
Safety Regulatory Panel (taxis) and Planning and Transportation
Regulatory Panel, due to the number of people required to attend and so they
will remain at 100 Embankment for the foreseeable future. There may also be
times, when the date and times of meetings clash, that one may need to move to
100 Embankment.
2. Using the Salford Suite for face to face meetings
There are also construction works be carried out in the Civic Centre so it is very
important, for everyone’s safety, that you only visit the Salford Suite when attending
meetings.
a. Where to enter the building
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please
walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain
access.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 1

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings
• Extensive rebuilding renovations are taking place in the Civic Centre so
access to rooms and space is very limited. Most of the building will remain
closed and many contractors will be working on site.
• Other members of the public are also using the building to access the
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements are in place for
them to do so safely and to help us manage the numbers of people in the
building so access is restricted to the Registrars corridor and the
ceremony room’s corridor during the day.
c. Toilets
• The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.
The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and members of
the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite during the day.
• The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required and an
officer from Democratic services will act as a marshal on the corridor so
members can use it. Please alert the clerk in attendance at the meeting on
the day.
3. Guidance for attending the meetings in a COVID-safe manner
a. Testing for meetings
• Testing guidance in England has changed. Most people without COVID-19
symptoms do not need to get lateral flow tests, if you have been in contact
with someone who has COVID-19 or who has displayed symptoms and you
suspect they may have COVID-19, it is requested that you take a lateral
flow test before attending.
• In line with current Government guidance, if you have symptoms of COVID19 you are advised get a PCR test as soon as possible if you have any of
these symptoms, even if mild:
o a high temperature
o a new, continuous cough
o a loss or change to your sense of smell or taste
• In line with current Government guidance, if you have symptoms of COVID19, you should stay at home and avoid contact with other people. Get advice
about staying at home and avoiding contact with others
•

Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a
residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you
the risk is higher, particularly if you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if
they are at significant risk or you have one or more health conditions as a
number of risk factors may interact as well as health conditions.

• You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if
either of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending
face to face meetings.
b. Attending the meeting on the day in The Salford Suite
• Please arrive for the meeting giving yourself plenty of time of the meeting to
allow for controlled access to the building and meeting space.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 2

•

•

The meeting will be run in line with Public Health guidance, and using the
principle of ‘hands, face, space and fresh air’. You are requested to regularly
wash and sanitise your hands and wear a face covering whilst attending
meetings.
Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum
with pre-defined entrances and exits and restricted areas, as outlined above.

4. Meetings continuing at 100 Embankment
a. Testing for meetings
The advice listed under 3a above also applies at 100 Embankment.
b. Travelling to 100 Embankment
• There are a range of travel options to 100 Embankment, and full details can
be found at this link: https://embankmentmanchester.com/transport-options.
• It is a 4 minute walk from Manchester Victoria train and tram stations
• The Free Bus stops outside both Salford Central Station and 100
Embankment
• There is secure cycle storage and showers on site.
c. Parking at 100 Embankment
• There is onsite parking in the underground QPark (Deansgate North)
immediately below the building. Discounts are available for parking booked in
advance (https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgatenorth/). Cleminson Street remains the closest Salford City Council parking.
• Taxi drop off is available immediately to the front door of the building.

Last updated 01.03.22

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Minutes of the Meeting of the Adults Commissioning Committee held
via MS Teams on Wednesday 9 March 2022
Meeting started at 14:00
Meeting ended at 15:20
Present
Cllr Bill Hinds (BH)
Cllr Tracy Kelly (TK)
Dr Jeremy Tankel (JT)
Mrs Karen Proctor (KP)
Dr Tom Regan (TR)
Ms Elaine Vermeulen (EV)
Mr David Flinn (DF)

Lead Member for Finance & Support Services – SCC
Statutory Deputy City Mayor & Lead Member for Housing – SCC
Medical Director - CCG – Chair
Director of Commissioning – CCG
Clinical Director for Commissioning – CCG
Interim CEO – CCG
Neighbourhood Lead - CCG

In Attendance
Dr Muna Abdel Aziz (MAA)
Mr Neil Cudby (NC)
Mr Harry Golby (HG)
Mrs Joanne Hardman (JH)
Ms Alison Page (AP)
Mr Judd Skelton (JS)
Mr Paul Walsh (PW)
Dr Girish Patel (GP)
Stephen Tilley (ST)
Mr Mike McHugh (MM)
Mr Chris Howl (CH)

Director of Public Health – CCG / SCC
Assistant Director Commissioning - CCG
Deputy Director of Commissioning – CCG
Chief Finance Officer – SCC
Salford CVS
Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning – CCG/SCC
Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning – CCG/SCC
PCNS/ SPCT
Senior Service Improvement Manager Urgent Emergency Care – CCG
Democratic Services – SCC (servicing meeting/ minutes)
Democratic Services – SCC (minutes)

Apologies for Absence
Cllr Damian Bailey (DB)
Cllr John Merry (JM)
Ms Claire Vaughan (CV)
Dr David McKelvey (DMcK)
Mr David Warhurst (DW)
Mr Steve Dixon (SD)
Mrs Charlotte Ramsden (CR)
Ms Clare Mayo (CM)
Dr Tara Kearney (TK)
Ms Gillian Mclauchlan (GM)
Ms Zoe Morris (ZM)
Ms Fiona Smith (FS)
Dr Peter Turkington (PT)

Executive Support Member for Social Care & Mental Health
Deputy City Mayor & Lead Member for Adult Social Care – Co-Chair
Director of Quality and Head of Medicines Optimisation – CCG
Neighbourhood Lead - CCG
Chief Finance Officer – CCG
Chief Accountable Officer – CCG
Strategic Director People – SCC
Integrated Commissioning Manager – CCG/SCC
NCA
Deputy Director of Public Health – CCG/SCC
Associate Director - Performance & Strategic Development - GMMH
Risk and Assurance Manager - CCG
NCA

Page 5

1. Apologies for Absence
The apologies above were noted. The committee were advised that it was inquorate as there were
only two members from SCC and would thus be an informal meeting. The committee’s consideration
of two decisions in respect of items 4 (Community Diagnostic Centre) and 5 (CURE – Tobacco
Addiction Programme) would be subsequently emailed to Cllr Merry and Cllr Bailey in order to seek
their approval in order to allow a quorate decision and that decision notices can be published.
2. Declarations of Interest
JT declared an interest in agenda item 4 as Medical Director of Salford CCG and took no part in the
discussion of the item.
AP declared an interest in agenda item 8 as Salford CVS are stakeholders and contracted in respect of
Achieve and the Age Friendly Salford VCSE Partnership and took no part in the discussion of the item.
3. Draft Minutes of the Meeting Held on 12 January 2022
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2022 were approved as a correct record.
4. Community Diagnostic Centre – Tom Regan
TR presented a report which described proposals for a community diagnostic centre offering simple
cardiorespiratory investigations and phlebotomy, which has been tested since April 2021. The paper
outlined the evaluation from the test and proposed a further expansion into each neighbourhood.
The benefits of community diagnostic centres are reduced attendance to the hospital site, quicker
diagnoses, reduced infection risks and greater division between acute and elective diagnostics.
The paper proposed the development of a network of community diagnostic centres (CDCs) in
Salford. The paper described the outcomes of a test of one centre, based at Swinton Gateway.
The investment will enable the setting up of a diagnostic centre in each neighbourhood,
offering a range of cardiorespiratory investigations and phlebotomy.
CDCs are one of the recommendations of the Independent Review of Diagnostic Services. Demand for
diagnostic tests is increasing and CDCs offer patients quicker, more convenient diagnostics, with
lower infection risk. CDCs offer the possibility of transforming the traditional outpatient pathway and
help to free up capacity for acute, hospital-based diagnostics. CDCs can also reduce pressure on
primary care services. The proposal will increase diagnostic capacity across Salford.
The investment, if approved, will support integrated working and improve health and wellbeing
outcomes for the people of Salford. The wider system benefits include reduced pressure on general
practice and fewer unnecessary visits to hospital. Aligned to new models of care delivery, the CDC
may support the delivery of elements of the NHS long term plan including an overall 30% reduction in
the number of face-to-face outpatient appointments.
At the start of the financial year the CCG, as part of the planning process, identified £500,000 for this
service, this Business Case totals £516,000, so there is a shortfall of £16,000.
This paper was presented at Salford Care Organisation (SCO) investment committee and Service and
Finance Group (SFG) in February. Both committees provided similar feedback.
The SFG supported the paper and made some recommendations. These recommendations are:
1. One of the recommendations from the Service and Finance Group was to review the model going
forward as it doesn’t necessarily have to be 5 centres, one in each PCN, operational each day and
could be a flexible model that moves across the locality.

Page 6

2. SFG supported the principle of commissioning and rolling out Community Diagnostic Centre’s to be
accessible across all areas of Salford.
3. SFG supported that the locality should work within the £0.5m allocation for CDC’s going forward in
Salford. It should be noted that the final amount of the national allocation from Service
Development Fund (SDF) has not been published but for a planning perspective is expected to be
similar value to that received in 2021/22.
4. SFG noted that learning from the pilot should be taken forward with an aim to improve utilisation
of the service. This will support the value for money and test per case calculation. SFG also clarified
that the offer going forward doesn’t necessarily mean five centres in each PCN, operational each
day and could be a model that moves across the locality which could help with these financial
metrics (a model like the Lung Health Check Service).
5. After dialogue with SRFT finance colleagues it is assumed there is no additional ask from Salford
CCG for the financial year 2021/22.
6. It was agreed that with impending changes within the commissioning environment that the
Locality Board would have this on its work plan to receive, review and steer going forward Adults
Commissioning Committee is asked to:
 Review and support the proposal including working within the expected £0.5m allocation
envelope.
 Review and support the recommendation that the model should work within the £0.5m
allocation for CDC’s going forwards and take forward learning from the pilot and options other
than having five fixed, daily Centres in each PCN should be explored.
 Support there being a further review of the service in 6 months’ time, and 6 months after that
until all parties are comfortable with the model.
 Support the recommendation that the CDC be added to the work plan of the Locality Board and
this board will subsequently receive, review and steer the service going forward.
TR invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:
 Primary care services, including lobotomy services will not be affected by this proposal.
 Primary care clinicians will be able to refer patients to the CDC for diagnostic tests via the longCOVID service, GPs having already sought Advice and Guidance from a secondary care clinician
and/ or hospital clinicians asking a GP to refer.
 The y axis on the diagrams in paragraphs 7.2 and 7.3 being ‘number of appointments’.
 Whilst the Locality Board won’t be able to overturn our decision today, it could refine the
delivery model in time so that it stays fit for purpose.
 There needs to be provision to be able to alter service delivery based upon regular reviews of
the available of slots across the city, in order to ensure equality of access and matching n eed to
demand.
 In terms of being able to measure the value of service change (i.e. the difference of doing
nothing compared to doing something), the proposal has been predicated on the new service
delivery model being no more expensive than that which is spent currently, but that within the
cost envelope there is the ability to alter and revise delivery so as to better utilise the sum.
 Care would be taken in new service communications to ensure that equality of access and
matching need to demand was emphasised.
The Adults Commissioning Committee:
 Reviewed and supported the proposal including working within the expected £0.5m allocation
envelope.
 Reviewed and supported the recommendation that the model should work within the £0.5m
allocation for CDC’s going forwards and take forward learning from the pilot and options other
than having five fixed, daily Centres in each PCN should be explored.
 Supported there being a further review of the service in 6 months’ time, and 6 months after
that until all parties are comfortable with the model.
 Supported the recommendation that the CDC be added to the work plan of the Locality Board
and this board will subsequently receive, review and steer the service going forward.

Page 7

5. CURE Business Case (Post six months' evaluation) – Neil Cudby/ Sam Mansfield
NC presented a report which described the CURE project, a secondary care programme that treats
tobacco addiction and dependency (an update to the 8 September 2021 report that provided an
overview of the implementation of the CURE tobacco addiction programme to date, at Salford Royal
Foundation Trust, including a proposal to establish a permanent CURE service at Salford Royal with an
integrated discharge pathway into community smoking cessation services). The initial pilot was
delivered at Wythenshawe Hospital and was then rolled out in 2020 across six other acute Trust sites
in GM, including Salford (commencing August 2020).
The CURE Business Case was presented to Adult Commissioning Committee (ACC) in September 2021
with a request for support for continued funding. At that time ACC expressed some concern that the
project was not currently delivering as originally projected and a six-month extension was agreed with
a further assurance paper required at that time.
The report gave an update on performance of the CURE project at Salford Care Organisation, aiming
to provide ACC with assurance that improvements in performance are being seen and actions are
being undertaken to further improve project outcomes.
TR invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:
 Whilst there is no hard evidence, over the COVID-19 pandemic period, that there have been
reduced numbers of people stopping smoking (or attempting to stop smoking) or of people
returning to smoking, it would not be surprising if any of these had happened as many people
have a lot going on in their lives – in addition, deepening poverty is known to adversely affect
rates.
 There needs to be regular reviews to ensure that this GM approach ensures that patients who
access out-of-borough hospitals are reconnected to localised in-borough services.
 Going forward there should be an attempt to capture a KPI focused on ‘patients not accepting a
referral to a support service’.
 This approach should more than pay for itself in terms of savings on lung patient treatments –
both for the patient and the NHS.
The Adult Advisory Committee:
 Noted the NHS LTP and GM requirements to have a tobacco dependence treatment service in
all inpatient settings.
 Noted the improvements in performance being seen under the CURE project and the action
plans in place to further improve project outcomes.
 Approved the £267k funding to sustain the CURE Tobacco Addiction programme for inpatients
at Salford Care Organisation.
6. Finance Report – Elaine Vermeulen
EV presented a report which provided an in-year update in relation to the financial performance of
the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund:
 At January 2022, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is currently forecasting to be
overspent by £2.6m. The last report forecast an overspend of £3.0m, an improvement in the
position by £0.4m. At £2.6m, the Adult’s fund would be £0.6m underspent against the planned
deficit of £3.2m.
 Highlights the YTD and Forecast of the adults integrated fund up to January 2022 with a
projected £2.6m overspend for the year against a planned opening adults’ pressure of £3.2m.
The main movements being:
o (£0.5m) reduction in committed developments.
o (£0.1m) reduction in CHC and FNC packages of care.
These are offset by:
o £0.1m increased costs relating to Acute services.

Page 8

o £0.1m increased costs relating to Community services.
 Provides an update on the investment decisions made as part of the Adults’ plan for 2021/22.
 Gives an update on 2022/23 planning and the current assumptions and aims for each of the
integrated funds. ACC is asked to note the financial position along with the requirement to
deliver on the savings programme for the Adults’ Integrated Fund in 2021/22.
TR invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:
 The £6.1m 2020/21 core underline deficit, despite re-occurring would not be entered as core
budget, because there is still potential to reduce this amount in-year.
The Adult Advisory Committee:
 Noted the financial position for 2021/22.
 Noted the process for 2022/23 planning and current high-level position.
 Noted the risks outlined in section 5 of the report.
7. Urgent & Emergency Care Update – Stephen Tilley
ST presented a report which provided an update on work programme activity, challenges,
performance and developments in the Urgent & Emergency Care services in the Salford locality, as
well as outlining performance against relevant NHS Constitutional Standards.
ST invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:
 Further work would be undertaken to try to ascertain what happened to patient callers who
were not being answered, in respect to both improving the missed call rate and trying to find
out do they attempt another pathway.
 There was an NHS 111 action plan in place for improving call answering rates, for both
equipment and staff.
 There were indeed various ‘touch points’ in the referral process presenting challenges to
getting patients to change their pathway of choice.
 Further work might be required to ascertain the impact of and on primary care services of
encouraging patients to transfer/ change their pathway of choice.
 Within Salford that we are confident that our local directory of referral services are primed and
ready.
The Adult Advisory Committee:
 Noted the contents of this report and supporting appendices for information and assurance.
8. Public Health Commissioning – Muna Abdel-Aziz
MA presented a report which outlined the current status of the Public Health commissioned services
and workplans for 2022/23, for assurance purposes only, with no decisions to be taken within the
report. The report covers the commissioned services that are part of the integrated pool and those
that are in view relating to public health and prevention.
Integrated sexual health and substance misuse contracts are due to be reviewed and renewed in
2022/23. Sexual health Local enhanced services in primary care are part of the Salford Standard and
public health services are also being delivered by pharmacies.
The core public health team in the council and health improvement service are delivering prevention
services across the life course. There are spotlights on healthy ageing, physical activity and oral
health.
There are other strategic plans to which public health contribute that are not reflected in the report
e.g. for children and other prevention priorities in the Locality Plan.
MA invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:

Page 9

 The update provided a really useful overview of the cross-over between coterminous
conditions affecting some patients, with some receiving treatment for the separate conditions
by the same providers across several services, i.e. mental health and substance misuse support.
 There are sufficient STI resources in Salford, but the profile of service users is changing.
The Adult Advisory Committee:
 Noted the 2021/22 report for commissioned public health services in the context of living with
and recovering from COVID for assurance.
 Noted the proposed workplans for services in 2022/23.
9. Adult Commissioning Report – Neil Cudby/ Harry Golby/ Judd Skelton
NC presented the section of the report which provided an overview of the Effective Use of Resources
Service, for assurance.
JS presented a report which provided an overview of Mental Health Community Rehab and Mental
Health Investment Standard Developments, for assurance.
JS invited questions and observations from members as follows, whereby it was confirmed that:
 Salford’s IAPT services have 39% access by ethnic minorities compared to 13% nationally.
 Salford’s PTSD treatment offer is constantly evolving and is not just relying on CBT.
The Adult Advisory Committee:
 Noted and discussed this overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning and
provision relating to adult health and care, for assurance.
10.Any Other Business
There were no items of any other business.
11.Date of Future Meetings
The proposed schedule of dates of meetings for 2022/23, to commence at 14:00 are:











Wednesday 11 May 2022
Wednesday 15 June 2022
Wednesday 13 July 2022
Wednesday 14 September 2022
Wednesday 12 October 2022
Wednesday 9 November 2022
Wednesday 11 January 2023
Wednesday 8 February 2023
Wednesday 8 March 2023
Wednesday 10 May 2023

Confirmation will be provided nearer the time as to whether the meetings are to be held remotely or
face-to-face.
It was noted that in view of GM CCG’s being disestablished at the end of June 2022 and the new GM
arrangements being introduced from July 2022 onwards, that requirements might change and to
keep abreast of this a situation report would be presented to the 11 May 2022 meeting.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

Adults’ Commissioning Committee
11th May 2022
5. Finance Report
Item for: Assurance
Report of:

Chief Finance Officer

Date of Paper:

3rd May 2022

In case of query, please contact:

Elaine Vermeulen, Interim Chief Finance Officer

Strategic Priorities:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Adult Services
Children’s and Maternity Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation
Tackling poverty and inequality
Reducing Health Inequalities
Skills and Education (A Learning City)
Affordable Housing
Transport and Digital Connectivity
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency
Vibrant Place and Spaces
Creating an Economy for All

(Please tick as appropriate)

Mayoral Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)





Purpose of Paper:
This paper provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with the anticipated final financial
performance to the financial plan of the Adults Integrated Fund for 2021/22.

Page 11

Further information
How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council?

How does this paper address health inequalities
and promote inclusion?

Ensuring public funding is spent
appropriately. Achieving Value for Money,
ensuring that funding is available to protect
core services.
Financial and performance pressures
associated with the adults’ integrated fund
services. Through management of committed
developments and holding providers to
account for performance.

What risks may arise as a result of this paper
and how will they be mitigated?
Does this address any existing high risks facing
the organisation and how does it reduce them?
Are there any possible conflicts of interest
associated with this paper?

N/A

Will any current services or roles be affected by
issues within this paper and what are they?

N/A

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided.

Document Development
Has there been Public Engagement?

N/A

Has there been Clinical Engagement?

N/A

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically
N/A
and environmentally been considered?
Has there been an analysis of any impacts on
equality?

N/A

Has legal advice been obtained?

N/A

Has this been to any groups or committees for
engagement, comments, or approval?

Elements have been reviewed by the Service and
Finance Group

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were
requested about any part of the work.

Page 12

Finance Report
1.

Executive Summary

This finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with an
anticipated final financial performance of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund.
At March 2022, the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund is overspent by £2.9m. This is a
worsening of £0.3m from the last reported position.
Section 2 – Highlights the financial performance of the adults integrated fund up to March
2022 with an overspend of £2.9m for the year against a planned opening adults’ pressure
of £3.2m. The main movements are summarised below.
 £0.1m increased costs relating to Acute services
 £0.1m increased costs relating to Community services
 £0.1m increase in CHC and FNC packages of care.
Section 3 – Provides an update on the investment decisions made as part of the Adults’
plan for 2021/22.
Section 4 – Gives an update on 2022/23 planning and the current assumptions and aims
for each of the integrated funds.
ACC is asked to note the final financial position for the Adults’ Integrated Fund in 2021/22.

2.

Integrated Fund 2021/22

2.1

This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with
the final position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial year
(2021/22). The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be noted, due
to the majority of contracts remaining on block for 2021/22 these appendices have
been removed for this year as they provide detail on activity which is not currently being
reported. This finance report is based on information up to the end of March 2022. The
Service and Finance Group (SFG) have scrutinised the position and agreed to the key
messages.

2.2

The final position for 2021/22 at March 2022 is an overspend of £2.9m, against a
planned overspend of £3.2m for the adults’ integrated fund. There has been a £0.3m
net adverse movement in the position since the last report, as shown in Table 1 below:

Page 13

Table 1: 2021/22 Financial Summary

2.2.1

Customer & Client Receipts - As part of regular monitoring of the income undertaken
by local authority colleagues there has been no movement in client income since the
last report. The level of client income is still viewed as much lower than expected.
Additional staffing capacity has now been provided to enable more rapid completion of
financial assessments, so this position is expected to improve over time.

2.2.2

Acute Services – There have been further cost increases due to more activity being
seen in non-contracted areas.

2.2.3

Community Services – There has been increased diagnostic activity in the last few
months as providers work to clear the backlog in patient demand.

2.2.4

Continuing Health Care & Funded Nursing Care – There has been a slight increase
in the number of care packages since the last report resulting in a small adverse
movement of £0.1m.

2.2.5

Adult Social Care (ASC) - Although ASC is shown to have a breakeven position, this
has only been achievable due to additional funding from the hospital discharge
programme (HDP). Commissioners also contributed £1.3m that was set aside for the
opening risk of the ASC position on a non-recurrent basis in 2021/22. This funding has
been used to mitigate the risks in year and afford a breakeven position for
commissioners.

Page 14

3.

Strategy and Investments

3.1

An amount of £9.8m was set to be invested in 2021/22 within Adults’ services on new
or enhanced services across several areas at the start of 2021/22, below is the final
position of these investments at March 2022 as shown in table 3 below.

3.2

Investments of £8.5m have been transferred into new or enhanced services during
2021/22.

Table 3: Adults’ Investment Fund Summary 2021/22

3.3

Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) - Several schemes haven’t materialised
and has resulted in slippage. However, the CCG managed to still meet the standard
for 2021/22, therefore the remaining slippage after achievement of the target has been
utilised to offset the overall adults’ pressure for 2021/22.

3.3

Mayoral Priorities – All adult social care (ASC) funding was passed to the provider for
real living wage and pay inflation etc. The contingency of £0.6m has also been passed
to the provider non-recurrently to mitigate any further pressure affecting the fund in
2021/22. Commissioners will review the pressure again in 2022/23 planning.

3.4

Other – All these investments were reviewed by commissioners and there has been
no change to this position from the last report. The slippage has been used to offset
the overall pressure within the adults’ fund for 2021/22. Where committed investments
have slipped in this year, they will be included in the draft 2022/23 plan which has yet
to be approved.

Page 15

4.

2022/23 Financial Planning

4.1

The locality is finalising detailed financial planning for 2022/23 with colleagues from
Salford CCG, Salford Council and Salford Care Organisation regarding the integrated
fund. With changes to the commissioning landscape with the demise of CCGs and
formation of Integrated Care Boards, it has made the process more complicated, and
changes are being made to the type of spend that will still be delegated to the locality
and so available to include within the integrated fund. Although early indications were
that the quantum of the integrated fund was expected to reduce to circa £350m from
its current level of £660m, this is currently under review as more detailed guidance
emerges.

4.2

The current position is that the locality is working on the basis that the integrated fund
will be no greater than the £6.1m opening deficit to commissioners which was
affordable to the CCG and council and their respective contributions to that deficit.

5.

Risks

5.1

Recurrent underlying financial pressure on the fund and the impact that could have on
the locality’s ability to deliver its strategic objectives.

5.2

The risk of the transition of statutory responsibility from CCGs to the Integrated Care
System and any consequential revision of allocation methodologies.

6.
6.1

Recommendations
The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to:




Note the financial position for 2021/22.
Note the process for 2022/23 planning and current high-level position.
The risks outlined in section 5 above.

Elaine Vermeulen
Interim Chief Finance Officer, Salford CCG

Page 16

Agenda Item 6

ADULTS COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE (PART 1)
11TH MAY 2022
AGENDA ITEM NO 6 PLANNING & RISK UPDATE (ASSURANCE REPORT)
Item for: Assurance/Information
Report of:
Date of Paper:

Fiona Smith, Risk and Assurance Manager (Salford
CCG)
25th April 2022

In case of query, please contact:

Fiona Smith – fiona.smith55@nhs.net

Strategic Priorities:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Adult Services
Children’s and Maternity Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation
Tackling poverty and inequality
Reducing Health Inequalities
Skills and Education (A Learning City)
Affordable Housing
Transport and Digital Connectivity
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency
Vibrant Place and Spaces
Creating an Economy for All

(Please tick as appropriate)

Mayoral Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)

√

√

Purpose of Paper:

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)
with an update on the latest position in relation to the strategic annual plan for Adults
services and the risks associated with its delivery.
This paper forms part of the wider assurances to ACC with regards to performance,
locality assurance and strategic programme delivery and should be read in
conjunction with other papers to the Committee including but not limited to any
financial, quality and / or performance reports as well as any updates related to the
COVID-19 pandemic recovery planning.

Page 17

Further information

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council?

How does this paper address health inequalities
and promote inclusion?

What risks may arise as a result of this paper
and how will they be mitigated?

Does this address any existing high risks facing
the organisation and how does it reduce them?

Strategic planning is the vital to ensure we
continue to plan for the future needs of our
population. We must continue to provide
assurance of our delivery against those plans
by managing our performance and risks
effectively and reporting timely, accurate
information to our stakeholders. This report
provides a high level summary of the latest
position in relation to the strategic annual
plan for Adults services along with any risks
to its delivery and plans to mitigate those
risks.
The locality plan seeks to address health
inequalities and promote inclusion across
Salford. This report provides a high level
summary of the latest position in relation to
the strategic annual plan for Adults services
along with any risks to its delivery and plans
to mitigate those risks.
None identified. Details of specific risks
relating to the Adults services programme are
detailed in this paper.
Although this paper does not seek to
specifically address any existing high risks, it
is hoped that by providing focussed
assurances around progress against our
plans and risk information, we will be better
placed to manage our programme risks and
any areas of concern in relation to the
strategic plan for Adults services.
Areas of high risk have been summarised
within this report. Detailed risk treatment
plans are included in appendices as
appropriate.

Are there any possible conflicts of interest
associated with this paper?

None identified.

Will any current services or roles be affected by
issues within this paper and what are they?

None identified.

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided.

Page 18

Document Development
Has there been Public Engagement?

Not Applicable

Has there been Clinical Engagement?

Clinical advice has been sought on specific
elements within this paper.

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically
Not Applicable
and environmentally been considered?
Has there been an analysis of any impacts on
equality?

Equality work is included in this plan and
impact assessments have been completed
on individual work objectives/areas as
required.

Has legal advice been obtained?

Not Applicable

Has this been to any groups or committees for
engagement, comments, or approval?

Not Applicable

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were
requested about any part of the work.

Page 19

Planning & Risk Update
1.

Executive Summary

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)
with an update on the latest position in relation to the strategic annual plan for Adults
services and the risks associated with its delivery.
This paper forms part of the wider assurances to ACC with regards to performance,
locality assurance and strategic programme delivery and should be read in
conjunction with other papers to this Committee including but not limited to any
financial, quality and / or performance reports as well as any updates related to the
COVID-19 pandemic recovery planning.

2.

End of Year Programme Update

2.1

ACC members will recall that the annual plan for integrated commissioning
(Adults) for 2021/22 was agreed at the July 2021 meeting. The Annual Plan
2021/22 for Adults integrated commissioning is monitored through the CCG and
Council’s corporate management system, Pentana and as part of the staff
appraisals process. For access to Pentana, please contact the Planning and
Performance team.

2.2

Progress against the annual plan is reported to the CCG Governing Body and
Council’s Corporate Management Team on a six monthly basis in May and
November. There are 83 actions underpinning the annual plan for adults
integrated commissioning in Salford, 37 of which have been completed or
removed from the plan and 46 which will be carried forward to the 2022/23
annual plan. Appendix 1 shows the latest position reported.

2.3

The committee will note that 2021/22 continued to be an exceptional year due
to COVID-19. In addition the reorganisation of the NHS has required
management attention throughout the year. Ordinarily we have the carry over
of objectives from one year to the next, as many required time to implement
fully, however this year the carry over is perhaps greater than normal, due to
these additional demands.

3.
3.1

Programme Risk Update
A summary of the existing adults programme risk profile is provided in this
section for information. Live information regarding this programme risk register
can be found in the Adults Commissioning Committee portal within Pentana.
For access, please contact the Planning and Performance team.

Page 20

3.2

There are currently 7 risks on the programme risk register for adults integrated
commissioning (see Appendix 2), which is one more than last time, none of
which are scored as High (Red).

3.3

There have been no risks closed since the previous report, however, one new
risk has been added:


3.4

Of the 7 current programme risks no changes in score have taken place since
the previous report. The planning and performance team will work with risk
owners to ensure that risk scoring accurately reflects the current position.

4.
4.1

2022/23 Strategic Annual Plan
A draft Integrated Commissioning Plan for 2022/23 has been developed and is included
as a separate agenda item at this meeting.

5.
5.1

CCGPR.034 - Referrals to non-contracted previous “any qualified
provider (AQP)” provider

Recommendations
The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:


note the content of this report and supporting appendices for information and
assurance

Fiona Smith
Risk & Assurance Manager

Page 21

APPENDICES:
Appendix 1 – Year-end Programme Update for 2021/22 (Adults)
Appendix 2 – Adults Commissioning Committee Programme Risks

Page 22

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

"We want all adults in Salford to live independent, fulfilling and productive lives which will help
them to manage their own health and wellbeing and ensure a healthy life expectancy. For those
that need care and help, we want them to feel confident that their care is compassionate, of high
quality and meets their needs."
As outlined in our Annual Plan for Health and Social Care Commissioning in Salford, the integrated
commissioning plan for adult services is split across 9 strategic programme areas that are designed to
support delivery of a range of services across the following areas - Transition into adulthood; Strengthsbased approaches; Prevention first, reduce demand, high quality, safe care for those that need it most;
Independent, active lives, opportunities and protective factors, personal resilience, connections and
supportive communities, manage own health, healthy life expectancy; and, Carer friendly city, End of life
and palliative care, dignified death.
The year-end position for each of the strategic programme areas is detailed in this appendix along with a
summary of progress for each action in the plan.
Adults Social Care

Paul Walsh

Independent Living Service: The final business case was approved in January 2021. As new action is
proposed for 2022/23 to facilitate and oversee the implementation of the business case, including work to
remodel Reablement services.
Complex Dementia in Care Homes: One Salford based provider (Aspire) was successful in applying to
the GM complex dementia framework (January 2022). Further work is now taking place that will roll into
2022/23 to build the service model up and the start to make placements.
Learning Disability Supported Tenancy New Schemes. This relates to an existing business case for the
two Great Places supported tenancy schemes in Little Hulton and Walkden. Great Places has reported
significant increases to the build costs (circa £1.5m). Council officers are in discussion with Great Places to
consider options. A report will be taken to the Lead Member for Housing, Property and Regeneration.
Learning Disability Supported Tenancy Network Redesign. The commissioner review of the tenancies
with Aspire is nearing completion. ASC Assessments are completed, and service model options are being
prepared. A commissioning report will be drafted and taken through governance. The action will roll into
2022/23 and will include the implementation of the new service model.
Extra Care (tender for new care service): Following Covid related delays the working group to develop
the procurement strategy has reformed. It is anticipated that the tender (framework) will live in Q2 2022/23
with new provider selected for the framework later in 2022/23.
Extra Care (EC) New Schemes. There are 4 pipeline schemes that will increase availability of EC units by
circa 300 by 2023/24.


Arrow Street, Lower Broughton – Approved by ACC – delayed due to Covid – planning permission
secured – start on site planned for Q4 2021/22



Moorfield Close, Swinton – pending approval and planning permission in Q4



Pendleton Together - pending approval and planning permission in Q4



Allotment Road, Cadishead - pending approval and planning permission in Q4

Age Well Service: Integrated Commissioning and Public Health concluded the interview stage for the
tender. A report to Procurement Board is being prepare for May 2022.

Page
1 23

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Fairer Charging including Policy Review: Improvements have been made in the recovery of client income
through charging. A number or operational developments, including better use of data (from Liquid
Logic/Controcc system) and streamlining procedures, has facilitated this. Progress has been made to
update the draft Fairer Charing Policy to reflect new national policy changes and also to address local
demands for mental health, short-stay and extra care charging. The first draft of the new policy is expected
in the first half of 2022/23
Workforce Recruitment and Retention Fund: Two rounds of the national WWRF have been released and
the funding has been allocated to ASC providers is Salford. The funding totalling circa £2.5m for Salford,
can be applied to support workforce measures from 10 Dec 2021 to 31 March 2022. Salford has directed
providers to use this funding to support wage uplifts for workers.
Living Wage: The 2022/23 ASC Living Wage budget has been set to enable ASC staff to be paid at least
£9.90 per hour. ASC providers are being contacted about this offer.

2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of
'Adult Social Care Market Shaping'

ICASC2122.001

Action removed –
this is not a
specific action

Develop commissioning standards for technology enabled care

ICASC2122.002

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

Review Age UK services for people with dementia and wider
Age Well day services to inform the development of a new model
that is consistent with neighbourhood models of care and
procure new service

ICASC2122.003

Complete

Undertake improvement programme with the Independent Living
Service

ICASC2122.004

Complete

Deliver the Adults Social Care Best Value and Efficiency plan
working with Salford Royal Foundation Trust / Salford Care
Organisation and Greater Manchester Mental Health to secure
the agreed level of budgetary savings for Adult Social Care

ICASC2122.005

Complete

Develop and implement the Age Friendly City programme via the
Age Friendly Alliance action plan including the active ageing
project

ICASC2122.006

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Adults Social Care in
accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning
guidance

ICASC2122.007

Complete

Page2 24

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Adults Care Pathway

Harry Golby

This programme includes a range of distinct actions some of which are to be taken forward within the Salford
locality and others across Greater Manchester.
The most progress has been made on:
 Supporting services to in the light of COVID recovery – the operating model of a range of services
have been reviewed to reflect how best to operate in the context of COVID and ensure their priorities
reflect the recovery from the pandemic
 Evaluating the impact of the locality’s investment in 24/7 integrated End of Life Care specification –
the service continues to operate over the weekends and feedback is that objectives are being met
 Confirming the commissioning intention of Oviva Diabetes Support – a 12 month contract extension
for Oviva Diabetes Support programme has been agreed to ensure that people with type 2 diabetes
in Salford continue to have a choice of structured education and behaviour change programmes.
 Supporting changes to the Greater Manchester EUR model – some patient cohorts will be out of
scope of the new Greater Manchester model from July 2022, commissioners from Salford are
working with colleagues across Greater Manchester to ensure care for these people can be
approved from a different date from that time
 Supporting personalised packages of care and care pathways for people with significant neuro
rehabilitation needs – the funded nursing care team continues to manage these cases
2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

ICACP2122.001

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICACP2122.002

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICACP2122.003

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICACP2122.004

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Adults Care Pathway
in accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning
guidance

ICACP2122.005

Complete - All
aspects of the
system are
restoring activities
in line with
guidance.

Confirm the commissioning intentions for Oviva Diabetes
Support for 2021/22 and 2022/23 in the light of any Greater
Manchester developments

ICACP2122.006

Complete

Evaluate impact of investment in 24/7 integrated End of Life
Care specification

Review of Neuro-rehab pathway for personalised packages of
care and care pathways

Establish Greater Manchester wide commissioning governance
for Inpatient Neuro-Rehabilitation

Update the service specification for The Maples

Page
3 25

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Engage with NHS Local Health Care Record Programme
(LHCR) to deliver a shared care plan across sectors for
dementia and frailty

ICACP2122.007

Complete

Support changes to Greater Manchester (GM) Effective Use of
Resource (EUR) arrangements in the light of development of GM
Integrated Care System (ICS)

ICACP2122.008

Complete

ICACP2122.009

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

ICACP2122.010

Complete –
providers are
progressing

ICACP2122.011

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

Amend the service specification for the Anti-Coagulation Service
in the light of self-testing and new oral anticoagulants (NOACs)
and direct oral anticoagulants (DOACs) drugs

Agree CCG action plan re Healthier Together

Evaluate capacity and resources for end of life care including
care home palliative care team service review and review of
palliative care counselling service

Page4 26

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Adults Community Health Care & Voluntary, Community and
Social Enterprise (VCSE)

Tori Quinn; Paul Walsh

In January 2020 a business case was approved for two years transformation funding for investment in the
Urgent Response Team, Homesafe additional staffing capacity and community rehabilitation/
neighbourhood therapy additional staffing. The two-year period ends at the end of this financial year. Four
new business cases for the service model (Urgent Care Team, Homesafe/Homefirst, Intermediate care and
Independent Living Services) were taken through the appropriate governance process in January 2022. The
business cases were approved and implementation of new elements has begun. The CCG will continue to
work with Salford Care Organisation colleagues to implement and monitor the services going forwards.
Work continues locally to put in place Tier 1 Community Diagnostic Centres across the City. The first site in
Swinton became operational in April 2021 and further hubs in Irlam and Pendleton opened in March 2022.
There are plans to open up capacity in Little Hulton and Broughton too. A business case for the permanent
funding of the Centres was taken through governance and approved in February 2022 and was approved.
The hubs offer basic diagnostic tests such as Phlebotomy, non-obstetric Ultrasound, plain X-ray and a
number of basic physiological measurements. The aim of the model is to bring care closer to people’s home
and encourage further collaborative working between Primary and Secondary care.
The CCG works in partnership with Salford CVS to shape a community-focused grants and investment
programme aimed at addressing health inequalities across the city. This is known as the Third Sector Fund.
2021/22 is the second year of a 5-year, £5m agreement with Salford CVS as part of the CCG’s ongoing
commitment to support communities address the wider determinants of health as described in the Salford
Locality Plan. During 2020/21 this programme played a major part in supporting the voluntary, community
and social enterprise sector’s (VCSE) response to the COVID-19 pandemic and ongoing recovery.
Discussions are ongoing to agree the priorities for the fund in 2022/23.
In September 2021 the CCG and the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) agreed to extend the Social
Prescribing contract (known as the Wellbeing Matters Programme) with Salford CVS until 31st March 2024.
This service is a co-commissioned service with the CCG funding Volunteer Development Workers and the
PCNs funding Community Connector posts, as described in the PCN Direct Enhance Services (DES)
contract. Eccles and Irlam PCN and Walkden and Little Hulton PCN have opted to increase the number of
connectors within their area above the number detailed in the Wellbeing Matters Programme specification.

2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project
scope and plan to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of
'Adults Integrated Community'

ICACH2122.001

Complete

Ensure appropriate monitoring and reporting systems are
developed and implemented for the next phase of transformation
new models of care and that learning is fed into future
commissioning decisions

ICACH2122.002

Complete

Review and agree with PCNs the commissioning of Well Being
Matters

ICACH2122.003

Complete

ICACH2122.004

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

Review service level agreements for voluntary services with
Salford City Council and make recommendations for 2022/23
and beyond

Page
5 27

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Develop a strategic approach to the reconfiguration of
intermediate care beds across the city

ICACH2122.005

Complete

Review Advice and Information Service (CAB)

ICACH2122.006

Complete

Agree commissioner action plan for phlebotomy services

ICACH2122.007

Complete

Develop, implement and monitor Third Sector Fund with Salford
Community and Voluntary Services (CVS)

ICACH2122.008

Complete

ICACH2122.009

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Agree plan for review of community cardiology services e.g.
Heart Failure, Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinic (RACPC)

ICACH2122.010

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Adults Community
Health Care & Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
(VCSE) in accordance with GM recovery plans and national
planning guidance

ICACH2122.011

Complete

Develop agreed programme of service improvement of the
services delivered by Aspire

ICACH2122.012

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Confirm commissioning arrangements for Salford’s community
COVID services (i.e. oximetry@home and post COVID clinic)

ICACH2122.013

Complete

ICACH2122.014

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Support the development of Community Diagnostic Hubs for the
Northern Care Alliance (with a focus on Salford services)

ICACH2122.015

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Reducing CVD - Health checks

ICACH2122.016

Action removed
during 2021/22

Support the development of Tier 1 Community Diagnostic Hubs
for Salford

ICACH2122.017

Complete

Support and review local plans to progress the development of
Advice & Guidance and Consultant Connect (including for
paediatric services)

Confirm long term commissioning intentions for Healthy Living
Centres

Page6 28

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Adults Public Health

Dr Muna Abdel Aziz

A light touch review of the Locality Plan for Salford 2020-25 in August 2021 confirmed that the ambition
remained relevant and the priorities were exacerbated by COVID. There is commitment and strong
ownership by the partners in Salford to tackle health inequalities during COVID, and the additional focus on
co-production with local communities as we continue to live with the virus and emerge from the pandemic.
The Public Health Annual Report 2020/21 was published in December 2021 and outlines the priorities in
the locality plan and next steps. The role of the Director of Public Health and the core Public Health team is
to champion health and wellbeing, lead and influence work across partners to improve and protect health,
to set priorities and monitor progress towards reducing inequalities. Increasingly the team are working with
Primary Care Networks and neighbourhood partners to build on assets and shared priorities. The Locality
Board and Health and Wellbeing Board remit has been confirmed for health and care and for the Great
Eight priorities of Salford respectively.
The JSSNA programme is led by the Locality Programme / Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (LPG/JSNA)
group which is the subgroup of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The JSSNA is building on the assets
already in place like the Patient Champions, Housing Association Advocates and other trusted voices in
each neighbourhood.
This year, the mental health, sexual health and cancer JSNAs were produced and Deep Dive chapters in
progress for PCN/Neighbourhoods and the Wider Determinants. The Locality Plan Core JSSNA dashboard
and the Salford Ward profiles have been kept up to date and hold a repository of useful information for use
by Partners in Salford. The new look website for Partners in Salford highlights how the Great Eight priorities
in Salford all impact on public health for adults, children and families,
Work is underway on the Physical Activity strategy for Salford and programmes for adult weight
management were rolled out in collaboration with Salford Community Leisure. Across the city, there is a
new focus on the positive role of culture (Suprema Lex) on mental health and wellbeing. All the partnership
boards have nominated their mental health champion who are working together to roll out mental health first
aid training, Connect 5 training, and a calendar of mental health promotion campaigns.
The Salford Time to AcT (STAT) group as a subgroup of the Health and Wellbeing Board have continued
to meet monthly to develop the shared understanding of health inequalities, and to oversee the c oproduction priority for the Locality Plan. This year the group started co-production projects for the Locality
Plan priorities, Recent meetings have explored areas for improvement for uptake of COVID vaccinations;
and resetting the relationship between communities and primary care in this recovery phase emerging from
pandemic restrictions.
The Health Protection Board has continued to meet as a subgroup of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The
Coronavirus Levels weekly update continued to be produced throughout the year and only recently ceased
due to the ending of mass testing from 1 April 2022 as part of the Living with COVID plan. We continue to
use proxy measures for monitoring COVID to assess impact on staffing and on education, health and care
settings.
Risk assessment templates have been reviewed for health and social care settings and for individual risk
assessments and service settings building on health and safety requirements; including vaccination and
ventilation as the main mitigations. The programme of COVID risk health checks has continued with over
1,400 health checks undertaken during COVID; including nearly 600 in this last year.
The NHS health check and screening targets have been refreshed in the Salford Standard for next year.
Scheduled immunisations and cancer screening uptake have all seen a decline during the pandemic. There
have been two Salford system wide groups set up, an immunisation and screening operational groups. The

Page
7 29

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

groups met for the first time in January 2022 to scrutinise data and develop work programmes to increase
uptake. The members of the group are from key services across the relevant service providers and
commissioners including public health who chair the group.
Audits in care homes and GP practices recommenced in autumn 2021. The aim is to support settings to
have high standards of infection, prevention and control. Training has been offered throughout the
pandemic and will continue. The Health Protection team aims to build on and continue to identify learning
needs through audit during 2022.
The Health Improvement Service have re-established the comprehensive programme of face to face, group
and virtual provision across all topic areas. Nearly 4,000 clients have been supported through case
managed, structured programmes with Health Improvement in 2021/22.
The commissioning intentions for the commissioned public health services have been agreed through the
integrated commissioning committees. Business continuity and delivery plans are in place. There will be an
increasing focus on value for money and social value of these services in the future procurement
arrangements.
Reforms to the public health system announced in March became operational on 1 October 2021. Public
Health England was abolished with functions transferring to newly created UK Health Security Agency,
Office for Health Improvement and Disparities as well as into the NHS England/Improvement and NHS
Digital.
The functions and responsibilities of the Director of Public Health have not changed in the reorganisation
and the DHSC funding allocation of the Public Health Grant (via business rates retention in GM). Similar to
the NHS reforms, at Salford and Greater Manchester this poses opportunities and challenges as the new
system evolves.
2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

ICAPH2122.001

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.002

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.003

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Develop a whole system approach to reduce smoking
prevalence in Salford

ICAPH2122.004

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Implement the GM Alcohol and Drug Strategy including service
provision

ICAPH2122.005

Complete

Develop and produce a Sexual Health Needs Assessment with
recommendations, which will form part of a succinct Sexual

ICAPH2122.006

Complete

Sustain the CURE model in hospital and good practice in the
community. The CURE project is a treatment programme to help
smokers with their tobacco addiction and quit smoking.
Ensure there is a Public Health contribution to the strategic
review of Salford Community Leisure

Review and refresh Salford Activity Framework

Page8 30

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Health Strategy and inform future Sexual Health services
commissioning
Review weight management pathways across community
delivery partners and the NHS to inform the development of the
All-Age Obesity Strategy
Promote and tackle inequalities in uptake of the COVID vaccine
and testing offer – phase 2 and 3 (and any future phases)
supporting primary care delivery
Develop the approach for a strengths and asset-based JSSNA
(Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment).

Management of Health Care Associated Infection

Co-design and commission a population health focused, age
well service that supports the WHO’s (World Health
Organisation) Age Friendly City model

Develop a system wide approach to social prescribing in Salford

Work with the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and
neighbourhoods to agree and implement the public health and
primary care development plan

Support Salford Lung Health Check programme

Lead the COVID contain response, working across council, NHS
and wider partners to support recovery

Develop All Age Obesity Strategy encompassing food, physical
activity and place interventions
Develop public health engagement and inclusion activities within
the JSSNA (Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment)
approach.

Page
9 31

ICAPH2122.007

Adults complete.
Work will continue
on CYP in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.008

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.009

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.011

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.012

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.013

Work was placed
on hold due to
COVID - Work will
continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.014

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.015

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.016

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.017

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAPH2122.018

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Urgent Care Services

Stephen Tilley

Both Primary and Secondary care services have been under significant pressure in the Urgent Emergency
Care area. This is showing no signs of improving in the short term. Plans are in place to deal with the
present and future challenges that we expect. COVID is till impacting on attendance numbers in the
Emergency Department (ED), bed admissions in hospital, flow through and out of the hospital and is having
a substantial impact on staffing in both acute, primary and community settings.
New Models of Urgent Care - Emergency Primary Integrated Care (EPiC 24)
The new models of Urgent Emergency Care that Salford has developed continues to have the desired effect
of supporting Urgent Emergency Care in both the Primary Care and Acute Care arenas The Pre-Emergency
Department Registration service has now assessed approaching 28,000 patients since its inception with on
average only 3.5% of those patients being referred into ED. A further development of this program has been
to periodically extend the hours of this operation of this service from 8am to 8pm to 8am to midnight to help
deal with the large numbers of attendances at ED. The service is also testing paediatric streaming with
children being offered more appropriate support than being transferred into the PANDA unit. On average
only 11% of those patients using this streaming service are referred into the PANDA unit. The Call Before
You Attend service has supported over 10,000 patients since its inception with on average only 20% of
patients being referred to ED. Both these services deal with patients who would have directly attended ED
before their establishment. In addition, the COVID-19 Assessment Service continues to be supported by
the Local Clinical Assessment Service with nearly 38,000 using this service These programmes have
supported the management of patient numbers in Primary and Acute sectors but are also meeting national
mandated requirements around alternative pathways other than ED.
Extended Primary Integrated Care model (EPiC 24)
A review of the 2 year EPiC 24 model pilot was undertaken by the Primary Care Commissioning Committee
(PCCC) at the March 2022 meeting. The review presented was full supported by the committee and the
EPiC 24 pilot was sanctioned to continue. A further review has been scheduled for September 2022. The
EPiC 24 programme has covered in its development GP Out of Hours (GPOOH), COVID-19 services
(including COVID-19 assessment service / Home Assessment Service / Oximetry@Home), supported by
the establishment of the LCAS. The programme has a vision that patients should expect high quality
healthcare, in the most appropriate setting and will be seen by the most appropriate clinicians. EPiC 24 is
one of the first truly integrated models which align urgent and unscheduled care services via a 24/7 digital
hub to ensure that the people of Salford benefit directly. The digital hub has been the key enabler for the
integration of services provided across a range of virtual and physical locations.
In addition, the development of the EPiC 24 model has allowed us to apply for full Urgent Treatment Centre
(UTC) accreditation. The 34 points criteria that is required to be met in order to obtain accreditation, has
been submitted to NHSE. The Salford team met with representatives of NHSE in March 2022 to review the
submission, with positive feedback and support given from the visiting NHSE team. As the model proposed
is a virtual model, utilising the connectivity of the EPiC 24 model, NHSE have asked to visit Salford to
observe the pathways in operation. After this visit the submission will go forward to NHSE for final sign off.
This will meet the national expectations of the development of UTCs in all areas of England and will
supporting the integration of services across Salford that has been the aim of all providers across the
Salford locality. Both the EPiC 24 model and the development of a UTC support the Salford present and
future planning process across both Primary and Secondary Care.

Page1032

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

2021-22 Actions
Agree business case for Salford’s Urgent Care Redesign
Implement and evaluate business case for Salford’s Urgent Care
Redesign
Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Urgent Care Services
in accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning
guidance

Page
11 33

Reference No.

RAG

ICAUCS2122.001

Complete

ICAUCS2122.002

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICAUCS2122.003

Complete – The
system is
restoring activities
in line with
guidance.

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Elective Care

Neil Cudby

In response to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic the focus of the Elective Care Programme in 21/22 has
been on working with providers to support elective activity restoration and recovery of waiting times for
cancer, elective care and diagnostics; supporting those patients with significant waits for treatment and
delivery of workstreams in support of the GM Elective Care Reform Board’s work. Specific actions are
overseen by the Scheduled Care Delivery Board and include:









Ensuring appropriate provider waiting list clinical prioritisation and validation is undertaken
Utilisation of virtual and telephone outpatient appointments
Ongoing implementation of Advice & Guidance including Consultant Connect
Implementation of Patient Initiated Follow-Up (PIFU)
Monitoring of the Northern Care Alliance (NCA) Cancer Improvement Plans and associated
recovery trajectories
Engagement in the NCA Referral Optimisation and Outpatient Reform Programme; this is
overseen by a Being Well Delivery Group with 4 project groups reporting to it that cover the
different parts of the referral pathway.
Supporting the development and implementation of the GM Waiting Well Programme and
associated GM While You Wait website which launched in October 2021.
Facilitation of Inter Provider Transfer (IPT) of cohorts of patients from Salford Care Organisation to
Oaklands, where clinically appropriate, to maximise the utilisation of all available capacity to the
system.

Whilst restoration and recovery has been the focus, progress has also been made on the other workstreams
in the elective care programme; updates on these are summarised below.


The CCG supported the implementation of the NCA Rapid Diagnostic Centre (RDC) for cancer
patients; oversight of the RDC’s activity, performance and outcomes/impact is through the NCA
RDC Management Group with representation from the Service Improvement Team. Patients who
have non-site-specific symptoms (NSS) are referred to the RDC, either by their GP or triaged
from other two-week pathways into the RDC for diagnostics testing to either exclude cancer or
refer the patient to the correct specialist team for further investigations/treatment.



A further evaluation of the CURE project was presented to Adult Commissioning Committee who
approved continued funding of the project for 22/23 due to the positive outcomes demonstrated.
The CURE project represents a step change in dealing with smokers when compared to existing
hospital-based stop smoking services, shifting to dealing with smoking as a tobacco addiction
and working on an opt-out basis therefore aiming to provide intervention to all patients admitted
who smoke.



Continued funding for the Prehab4Cancer programme was confirmed through Service & Finance
Group following receipt of a positive evaluation demonstrating benefits to patients, providers, and
systems. The programme aims to provide patients with the best opportunity for excellent quality
outcomes and long-term survival through the provision of support to patients with physical
exercise, nutritional screening and advice, and emotional wellbeing support both before, during
and after cancer treatment.



The CCG has continued to support the roll out of the Salford Lung Health Check programme;
this has been mobilised across three of the five Neighbourhoods in Salford and will progress to
Swinton in May 22. Positively, the majority of those diagnosed with lung cancer have been
diagnosed in the early stages increasing the chances of successful treatment. The programme
also identifies a number of incidental findings that can then be managed in primary care.



The procurement process to tender for Direct Access Diagnostics (DAD) Services for age-related
hearing loss (adult hearing services) and direct access non-obstetric ultrasound (NOUS) has

Page1234

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

completed and the CCG supported the mobilisation of the two new providers for NOUS from
September 2021. A steady reduction in number of patients waiting and waiting times for NOUS
has been seen since the mobilisation.


The CCG continues to work with the NCA on the development of a business case for a Tier 1
Community Diagnostic Centre (CDC) in Salford. The business case is not due for submission to
the national team until the end of quarter 1 of the 22/23 financial year meaning that any
mobilisation of a Tier 1 CDC for Salford would likely be in quarters 3 or 4 of the 22/23.



Appropriate levels of independent sector elective capacity have been secured through the
transition into the GM ICS; recommendations to extend contract arrangements for current
providers (Oaklands & Pioneer) for a further year until March 2023, in line with GM Contracting
principles, have been presented to and approved by Service & Finance Group and Adults
Commissioning Committee.



The development of Dermatology services has continued with the development of the
Dermatology Referral Assessment Service (which enables Advice & Guidance) with supporting
education to GP practices (including Decide training course provision). A pilot to introduce teledermatology into the TWW skin pathway at Salford Care Organisation to support triage and
improve access for patients commenced in October 2021. Further work is ongoing to identify
opportunities to improve compliance with the teledermatology pathway as uptake has been low
to date.



The CCG continues to work with the lead commissioners for Breast Cancer Services at MFT to
seek assurances around recovery of performance and associated action plans for both TWW and
breast symptomatic pathways.



A proposed pan-locality delivery model for the transformation of Urology services across the NCA,
in line with the GM-wide Model of Care for Benign Urology, has been presented to Adult
Commissioning Committee. This model supports the delivery of a single urology service across
Bury, Rochdale, Oldham and Salford and is designed to deliver high quality and accessible
services for all patients addressing risks to service sustainability, unwarranted variation in both
access and outcomes, the ability to meet performance requirements and the future development
of the urological workforce. This transformation has now moved to the implementation phase.



To ensure that there is sufficient capacity to meet the vasectomy related needs of Salford’s
population, following a provider serving notice on their provision, Scheduled Care Delivery Board
agreed to increase the capacity available to the Salford population through use of capacity at the
NCA and Marie Stopes in 22/23. A further review of vasectomy provision is planned to be
undertaken in May 2022.



Engagement with the NCA regarding the transformation of orthopaedic elective services
continues via the Orthopaedic Programme Board. Work is ongoing to develop and establish a
single shared service model with site-based leadership. Adult Commissioning Committee has
provided feedback to the NCA regarding the equalities impact assessment and patient
engagement that is required relating to any proposed pathway changes.



The CCG secured and co-ordinated an allocation of national funding for recovery of specialist
weight management services on behalf of GM. This funding has been utilised to increase capacity
at MoreLife (Tier 3 weight management service provider for a large part of GM) and the NCA (Tier
4 bariatric surgery provider in GM) in the second half of 21/22, enabling more patients to receive
the treatment they need.

Page
13 35

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

ICEC2122.001

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICEC2122.002

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICEC2122.003

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICEC2122.004

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICEC2122.005

Recovery plans
will continue into
22/23 but are
covered under the
specific areas of
elective care,
diagnostics
cancer etc

Support development of Dermatology services across Greater
Manchester and progress local workstreams (e.g. Decide clinical
education & training programme, advice & guidance).

ICEC2122.006

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Support development of rapid access diagnostics for Salford’s
cancer patients

ICEC2122.007

Complete

Support improvements in diagnostic performance

ICEC2122.008

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Outpatient reform - To ensure main providers meet 30%
requirements from Long Term Plan (Digital)

ICEC2122.009

Action removed to be embedded
in digital plan

ICEC2122.010

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

ICEC2122.011

Partially
completed - work
will continue in
2022/23

Ensure Salford’s population have optimum access to
independent sector hospital (i.e. Oaklands) capacity

Support Northern Care Alliance (NCA) Urology Transformation

Progress local workstreams to support the GM Elective Care
Reform Board’s work (e.g. Gastroenterology)

Secure sufficient capacity to meet the vasectomy related needs
of Salford’s population

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Elective Care in
accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning
guidance

Review access to orthopaedic elective surgery, considering use
of Salford Royal, Fairfield, and Oaklands

Deliver local actions outlined in CCGs cancer plan aligned to GM
Cancer Plan

Page1436

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Adults Mental Health

Judd Skelton

The business case to expand the full Living Well model to city-wide provision was approved in early 2022.
Recruitment to support the expansion of the model is already underway, although it is recognised that it
may take time to fully recruit to the required staffing posts. Roll out will need to be progressed in line with
increasing capacity in the team.
Work is ongoing with Primary Care Networks (PCNs) to support a service level agreement with GMMH for
mental health practitioners embedded in the PCNs.
Governance of the model is provided via the Living Well Governance meeting which involves the key
delivery partners.
Living Well is a multi-disciplinary and multi-organisational structure, comprising statutory and voluntary
sector provision, peer support and effective connectivity being developed with Wellbeing Matters.

2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

Undertake suicide prevention training programme with key
frontline workers

ICAMH2122.001

Complete

Oversee the Living Well development to extend reach across the
city and ensure fidelity to new models of community mental
health as per NHS long term plan/PCN reimbursable roles and
develop a business case for recurrent investment

ICAMH2122.002

Complete

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health
including Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
and Early Intervention to improve attachment and bonding.

ICAMH2122.003

Work will continue
in 2022/23

The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Mental
Health support for adults

ICAMH2122.004

Action removed
during 2021/22

Develop diagnostic and post diagnostic services for ASD
(Autistic Spectrum Disorder) in line with national policy and
standards

ICAMH2122.005

Work will continue
in 2022/23

Develop a Salford priorities programme in response to the GM
Autism strategy

ICAMH2122.006

Work will continue
in 2022/23

Work with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
(VCSE) sector to extend reach around suicide prevention to
priority groups

ICAMH2122.007

Complete

Evaluate the bereavement counselling pilot

ICAMH2122.008

Complete

Develop Mental Health Care Home Liaison model and
associated business case for investment

ICAMH2122.009

Action removed
during 2021/22

Improve and widen the offer for complex service
users/rehab/specialist placements, including repatriation

ICAMH2122.010

Work will continue
in 2022/23

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Adults Mental Health
in accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning
guidance

ICAMH2122.011

Complete

Page
15 37

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Judd Skelton
Mental Health Crisis & Hospital to Home
Provision for two Crisis / Intermediate Care Mental Health Support Beds (to prevent hospital admission and
facilitate discharge) is now in place with Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust (GMMH).
Salford Urgent Care Listening Lounge (as an alternative to A&E) operates 24/7 with input from Home Based
Treatment and Living Well. Capital works at Hollybank have now been undertaken and the Listening Lounge
space is being further developed with welcoming aesthetics and furniture. Some works continue to be
undertaken on the roof area, however this is not preventing service delivery.
The Home Based Treatment staff are now operating from Hollybank and workshops are planned to support
joint working between the Home Based Treatment team and the Peer Workers / Recovery Workers.
Reporting is being developed monthly, however information to date is showing that referrals are flowing to
the service.
2021-22 Actions

Reference No.

RAG

ICAMHC2122.001

Complete

ICAMHC2122.002

Partially complete
- work will
continue in
2022/23

Review crisis care provision alternatives to A+E support
including mental health intermediate care beds and listening
lounge

ICAMHC2122.003

Partially complete
- work will
continue in
2022/23

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Mental Health Crisis
and Hospital to Home in accordance with GM recovery plans
and national planning guidance

ICAMHC2122.004

Complete

Deliver an improved health (including mental health) offer for
care leavers, and improved transitions between children's and
adult services
Review mental health care pathways including: Role and
function of adult mental health residential care and Supported
accommodation

Page1638

Appendix 1 - Adults Planning & Risk Update Report

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)

Judd Skelton

Published performance regarding waiting times for December 21 shows that Salford CCG is meeting the
target 18 weeks waiting time measures with 98% being seen in 18 weeks. Local data for February 2022
against the 18 week target shows performance as 99.6%.
The 6 week waiting time measure is not being achieved, with published performance showing performance
of 73% against the 75% target. Local data for February 2022 against the 6 week target shows performance
at 76.5%, which achieves the target.
Published recovery performance for December 21 is 43%, which shows that Salford CCG is not achieving
the target of 50%. Local data for February 2022 shows recovery performance at 44.1% which does not meet
target.
The monthly prevalence target of 2.08% was not achieved in December published data (performance was
1.4%) and performance is slightly off track to meet the end of year 25% prevalence target.
Discussions are ongoing with service providers to address the recovery performance and waiting time
challenges. Increasing complex presentations and national workforce challenges are contributing to target
pressures.
Non-recurrent funding has been allocated to the step 3 IAPT provision to support with a waiting list initiative
and to increase capacity in the pathway.
Step 2 IAPT provider is reviewing their delivery approach to inform future capacity management. This will
also be undertaken by the Step 3 provider, following the waiting list initiative.
Workforce discussions are taking place at a Greater Manchester level with regards to creating a more
diverse and sustainable workforce. Local providers are linked into Greater Manchester working groups
relating to the use of etherapy offers to support with demand management.
All IAPT workforce have been encouraged to undertake the long term conditions training being promoted
nationally.
Following the successful review of the bereavement and loss offer, the Salford Bereavement Therapy and
Loss service has now been funded recurrently.

2021-22 Actions
Improve pathways between Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT) services and key physical health services such
as Health Psychology, Cardiology, Chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD) and Diabetes, and explore potential
of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT Long Term
Conditions (LTCs) Five Year Forward View (FYFV) ambition
Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to IAPT in accordance
with GM recovery plans and national planning guidance

Page
17 39

Reference No.

RAG

ICAIAPT2122.001

Partially Complete
– work will
continue in
2022/23

ICAIAPT2122.002

Partially complete
- work will
continue in
2022/23

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2
Adults Commissioning Committee - Programme Risk Register - All Risks
Generated on: 26 April 2022

CCGPR.008 ICS Transformation Plans
If the ICS fails to deliver its transformation plans we may not realise the expected benefits including
financial sustainability.

Risk Owner /
Updater

Tori Quinn

Risk Sponsor

Harry Golby; Karen Proctor

Governance Group

ICJC

Partnership governance structure established to develop and monitor all transformation delivery plans including finance, qual ity and safety.
Service and Finance Plan agreed,
Investment Agreement with GM Health and Social Care Partnership in place with as sociated reporting process.
Dashboard providing progress with main outcome measures in place,
Business case approval process operational including a cost benefit analysis
Formative evaluation framework agreed

Existing Controls

Page 41

Salford Together Programme is partnership and is evidence informed and includes learning from older persons programme and kno wledge capture. Modelling of
savings / cost benefit analysis has informed interventions / workstreams and estimates of impact.

Assurances
Assurance Level

Level 1 - Departmental assessment (internal)
Delays to implementation of workstreams.
The plans are unlikely to impact on the residential care admissions target.
The link between the Locality Plan and Locality Plan governance is forming and change to the management of Domain one (preven tion and self-care) is in
development.

Gaps

Original Risk

8

Current Risk

8

Target Risk

4

Treat (Plan in place)
Commencing delivery of new workstreams with prioritisation of by domain groups,
including high impact and quick impact.

High Impact

4

Unlikely

2

Risk Identified

27-Nov-2017

High Impact

4

High Impact

4

Latest Update:

Unlikely

2

Very Unlikely

1

No updates to report

Risk Assessed 04-Apr-2022 Target Date

31-Mar-2022

1

04 Apr 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Constant

Risk History

Page 42
2

CCGPR.009 ICO Contracted Obligations
Risk Owner /
Updater
If the ICO fails to deliver its contracted obligations we may not see the expected outcomes for the Salford
population.
Risk Sponsor
Governance Group

Tori Quinn
Harry Golby; Karen Proctor
ICJC

Existing Controls

Contract and service spec in place, CCG Contracting and Finance governance established. Internal ICO governance structure in place, ICO part of SRFT Better
Care Lower Cost programme.

Assurances

The establishment of an ICO is evidence informed and supported as a new model of care.
The contribution of the ICO to the achievement of Integrated Care outcomes is outlined in Service and Financial Plan (SAFP) a nd Locality Plan, with provider
efficiency targets detailed.

Assurance Level

Level 1 - Departmental assessment (internal)

Gaps

Transformational programmes involving ICO is outlined in the SAFP. Now requires progression of implementation / reporting.
Original Risk

8

Current Risk

8

Target Risk

8

Treat (Plan in place)

Page 43

Realignment of ICO finance reporting, ICO transformation projects which are high impact
quick impact to be confirmed / prioritised /reported.

High Impact

4

High Impact

4

High Impact

4

Latest Update:

Unlikely

2

Unlikely

2

Unlikely

2

Position remains the same, the CCG continues to work with partners to monitor delivery
against contracted obligations.

Risk Identified

27-Nov-2017

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Risk Assessed 04-Apr-2022 Target Date
Constant

31-Mar-2022

Risk History

3

04 Apr 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

CCGPR.013 Autism: compliance to national strategy re diagnostic and post diagnostic support
If we are unable to procure a locally based service that is fully compliant with NICE guidance for autism
there is a risk that Salford persons with a diagnosis of autism may not receive all the range of required
support services to meet their needs linked to health and social care.

Risk Owner /
Updater

Lyndsey Daly

Risk Sponsor

Paul Walsh

Governance Group

Mental Health Commissioning Group

Existing Controls

Salford continues to use a diagnostic service based in Chester as an interim measure. We have already carried out significant work in terms of understanding
local needs and specifying a service. Need to further understand the people. APB in place to review, plan and coproduce.

Assurances

Revised data specification due in autumn, to capture number of autistic adults registered with a GP. Additional work with diagnostic service in respect of consent
and information sharing to direct post diagnostic offer of support.

Assurance Level

Level 1 - Departmental assessment (internal)
Failed tender exercise during 2016. Further work needed in respect of understanding the people we support and the collation o f meaningful data broken down into
3 parts, those diagnosed, non-diagnosed and those transitioning to adulthood. Data and awarenes s raising to underpin commissioning intentions and roll out of
Salford priorities and alignment to the strategy.

Gaps

Page 44

Original Risk

9

Current Risk

6

Target Risk

Treat (Plan in place)

4

•
•

We have recently revised our local requirements for service

We now have a plan to progress local discussions and collaborative planning within
the ICO in order to agree a fit for purpose specification for local service. The aim is to have
the ICO deliver a local compliant service, and this negates the need fo r further tendering.
Seek approval and funding via appropriate board. Review shows that further detail
needed to support above.
Medium Impact

3

Low Impact

2

Low Impact

2

Latest Update:

Likely

3

Likely

3

Unlikely

2

No change from last reported position

Risk Identified

27-Nov-2017

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Risk Assessed 04-Apr-2022 Target Date
Constant

31-Mar-2022

Risk History

4

04 Apr 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

CCGPR.025 Partner Organisation's Budget Pressures
If partner organisation's budgets come under increased pressure then they may need to cut services so
more pressure may be experienced by NHS services.

Risk Owner /
Updater

Elaine Vermeulen

Risk Sponsor

Steve Dixon; Elaine Vermeulen

Governance Group

Governing Body

Existing Controls

Regular meetings with providers, contract performance monitored every month. Integrated Care Joint Committee will receive detailed finance reports on the
adult’s pool and will monitor progress of closing the financial gap (£6m over 5 years.) Joint Committee ensures that one organisation does not make unilateral
decisions on decommissioning services within the scope of the pooled budget.

Assurances

Position is reported every month through Integrated Care joint Committee.

Assurance Level

Level 2 - Organisational Oversight (internal)
Time lag in contract performance information. Need to ensure clinical strategy groups and commissioning managers are engaged in controls. Children's services
and public Health budgets are not covered in the adults pooled budget/Joint committee arrangements - therefore need to understand impact of funding reductions
in those areas.

Gaps
Original Risk

9

Current Risk

6

Target Risk

3

Treat (Plan in place)

Page 45

Locality Plan meetings are now taking place with all partners and a specific Financial
Locality Plan meeting is being scheduled to review and monitor financial sustainability.
Look at other budgets to offset any of the financial pressure. Financial reserve to meet any
contract overspend.

Medium Impact

3

Medium Impact

3

Medium Impact

3

Latest Update:

Likely

3

Unlikely

2

Very Unlikely

1

We have assurance that partners' budget pressures are manageable for r 21/22, plans still
in development for 22/23

Risk Identified

06-Mar-2015

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Risk Assessed 05-Apr-2022 Target Date
Constant

31-Mar-2022

Risk History

5

04 Mar 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

CCGPR.030 Care Homes Quality
There is a risk that provision of care will not meet the level of quality expected by the commissioner and
we may fail to achieve the 20% target for care homes rated as inadequate or requires improvement under
the CQC inspection criteria. There is also a risk around market sustainability which is directly linked to
the management and oversight of care homes quality

Risk Owner /
Updater

Paul Walsh

Risk Sponsor

Karen Proctor

Governance Group

Governing Body

Existing Controls

Performance monitoring of CQC ratings on a monthly basis. A Quality group (Quality Improvement Network) is in place that has oversight of performance and
improvement

Assurances

The Quality group is working with both the Care Homes and the regulator CQC to assess and action the identified improvements plans.

Assurance Level

Level 2 - Organisational Oversight (internal)
A GM assessment undertaken as part of the Care Home Excellence programme has identified gaps in Salford's contract monitoring/improvements resource. This
has been mitigated through the use of the Improved Better Care Funding.

Gaps
Original Risk

6

Current Risk

6

Target Risk

3

Treat (Plan in place)

Page 46

The Quality group has a detail action plan of the care home who are either inadequate or
requires improvement and is working with home and the CQC on those action plans.

Medium Impact

3

Medium Impact

3

Medium Impact

3

Latest Update:

Unlikely

2

Unlikely

2

Very Unlikely

1

Salford current (April 2022) CQC care home ratings are:

Risk Identified

07-Nov-2017

Risk Assessed 04-Apr-2022 Target Date

31-Mar-2022

04 Apr 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

GOOD - 88% or 37 homes
REQUIRES IMPROVEMENT - 12% or 5 homes (year-end target 12%)

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Constant

Risk History

Engagement and support continues to be provided across the Salford system as we work
through the next phase of Covid 19. We remain in close contact with the regulator CQC on
matters relating to their inspections.

6

CCGPR.034 Referrals to non-contracted previous “any qualified provider (AQP)” provider
There is a reputational risk from a former AQP provider who have added themselves to the Secondary
Care Menu on e-RS to provide non-obstetric ultrasound services (NOUS) in Salford, outside of a GM
procurement process where they were an unsuccessful bidder. They have done this citing the choice
framework and should not have continued to accept new referrals for NOUS and there is no contract with
this provider and therefore no future monitoring and assurance around quality.

Risk Owner /
Updater

Neil Cudby; Eejay Whitehead Fiona Smith

Risk Sponsor

Karen Proctor

Governance Group

Existing Controls

Once we were aware of the continued referrals by Salford practices because the former provider was still visible on e -RS as a NOUS provider, BI reviewed all
referrals on e-RS since 14th September on an ongoing basis. We have contacted all practices concern ed and asked them to review all referrals to the former
provider and rebook any that had not already had a scan. However, there are a number of scans (awaiting exact figure) that ha ve already taken place.

Assurances

We will continue to review e-RS data and contact any practices that are still making referrals to the former provider.
We have written to the former provider and asked them to remove themselves from the secondary care menu on e -RS, not to continue to accept referrals and
informed them that we will not pay for any referrals post 14th September. In addition, Stockport CCG have formerly written to them, acting on behalf of all 7 GM
CCGs, asking why they believe they are permitted to remain on the secondary ca re menu and to inform them that no CCG in GM will pay for any activity from new
referrals post 14th September 2021.

Assurance Level

Level 1 - Departmental assessment (internal)
We have been in contact with NHS Digital and NHS England to make them aware of this issue and to enquire whether there are an y controls that can be put in
place nationally to restrict access to the secondary care menu.

Page 47

Gaps
Original Risk

12

Current Risk

4

Target Risk

4

Treat (Plan in place)
The risk and mitigations will be regularly reviewed

High Impact

4

Low Impact

2

Low Impact

2

Latest Update:

Likely

3

Unlikely

2

Unlikely

2

We have continued to work with other CCGs and NHSE and NHS Digital to resolve this
issue. The provider has removed themselves from e-RS on a temporary basis and we are
currently in discussion with them around a permanent resolution.

Risk Identified

16-Nov-2021

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Risk Assessed 07-Apr-2022 Target Date
Constant

31-Mar-2022

Risk History

7

10 Feb 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

CCGPR.010 Reduced Community Heart Failure Service for the next 6 – 12 months
Risk Owner /
Updater
If there is a reduced Community Heart Failure Service then the care provided to Salford residents may be
affected.
Risk Sponsor

Tori Quinn
Harry Golby

Governance Group

• Meeting fortnightly with SRFT/CCG (Heart Failure Task and Finish Group) to review mitigation.
• Ongoing communication in place to primary care through Members Newsletter

Existing Controls

Within fortnightly meetings as above, seek assurances about:
• Demand of the service

• Impact on other cardiology services
• Impact on primary care
• Admissions, Length of Stay and mortality

Assurances

Page 48

Assurance Level

Level 1 - Departmental assessment (internal)

Gaps

None identified
Original Risk

12

Current Risk

2

Target Risk

2

High Impact

4

Very Low Impact

1

Very Low Impact

1

Latest Update:

Likely

3

Unlikely

2

Unlikely

2

No change since last update - Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, changes to ways of
working have increased efficiency in some clinical specialties. The CCG has rei terated to
the manager of the Heart Failure team the data requirements requested to enable a future
commissioning decision to be made regarding the service. There are plans to review
cardiology services capacity and demand in 2022/23.

Risk Identified

01-Mar-2019

Risk Movement since last
assessment

Risk Assessed 04-Apr-2022 Target Date
Constant

Risk History

8

Tolerate

04 Apr 2022

Next Assessment Due:

06-Jun-2022

Page 49

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

ADULTS COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE (PART 1)
11TH MAY 2022
AGENDA ITEM NO 7 - INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING PLAN 2022/23 (ADULTS)
Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information
Report of:
Date of Paper:

Fiona Smith, Risk and Assurance Manager (Salford
CCG)
25th April 2022

In case of query, please contact:

Fiona Smith – fiona.smith55@nhs.net

Strategic Priorities:

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Adult Services
Children’s and Maternity Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation
Tackling poverty and inequality
Reducing Health Inequalities
Skills and Education (A Learning City)
Affordable Housing
Transport and Digital Connectivity
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency
Vibrant Place and Spaces
Creating an Economy for All

(Please tick as appropriate)

Mayoral Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)

√

√

Purpose of Paper:

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)
with an update on the latest position in relation to the development of the 2022/23
Integrated Commissioning plan for Adults services.

Page 51

Further information

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council?

How does this paper address health inequalities
and promote inclusion?

Strategic planning is the vital to ensure we
continue to plan for the future needs of our
population. We must continue to provide
assurance of our delivery against those plans
by managing our performance and risks
effectively and reporting timely, accurate
information to our stakeholders.
The development of the locality plan seeks to
address health inequalities and promote
inclusion across Salford.

What risks may arise as a result of this paper
and how will they be mitigated?

None identified.

Does this address any existing high risks facing
the organisation and how does it reduce them?

Although this paper does not seek to
specifically address any existing high risks,
areas of risk have been considered as part of
the planning process.

Are there any possible conflicts of interest
associated with this paper?

None identified.

Will any current services or roles be affected by
issues within this paper and what are they?

None identified.

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided.

Page 52

Document Development
Has there been Public Engagement?

Not Applicable

Has there been Clinical Engagement?

Clinical advice has been sought on specific
elements within this paper.

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically
Not Applicable
and environmentally been considered?
Has there been an analysis of any impacts on
equality?

Equality work is included in this plan and
impact assessments will be completed on
individual work objectives/areas as required

Has legal advice been obtained?

Not Applicable

Has this been to any groups or committees for
engagement, comments, or approval?

Not Applicable

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were
requested about any part of the work.

Page 53

Integrated Commissioning Plan 2022/23 (Adults)
1.

Executive Summary

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Adults Commissioning Committee (ACC)
with an update on the latest position in relation to the development of the 2022/23
Integrated Commissioning plan for Adults services.
The ACC is asked to review, comment and endorse the content of the draft plan.

2.

Salford approach to planning for 2022/23
NHS Priorities and Planning Guidance 2022/23

2.1

The NHS Planning Guidance for 2022/23 was issued on 24 th December 2021 (link to
2022/23 planning guidance) and sets out the following priorities for 2022/23:
A. Invest in our workforce
B. Respond to COVID-19 ever more effectively
C. Deliver significantly more elective care to tackle the elective backlog, reduce long
waits and improve performance against cancer waiting times standards.
D. Improve the responsiveness of urgent and emergency care (UEC) and build
community care capacity
E. Improve timely access to primary care
F. Improve mental health services and services for people with a learning disability
and/or autistic people
G. Continue to develop our approach to population health management, prevent illhealth and address health inequalities
H. Exploit the potential of digital technologies to transform the delivery of care and
patient outcomes
I. Make the most effective use of our resources
J. Establish ICBs and collaborative system working

2.2

The guidance was reviewed by the Risk and Assurance Manager and each of the
requirements was identified. A comparison of the requirements of the 2022/23 planning
guidance with the existing 2021/22 Integrated Commissioning Plan identified that the
guidance is not substantially different. However, any new or expanded areas were
flagged to managers for inclusion in the draft plan.

2.3

The previous two years have been extraordinary and 2022 so far continues to present
daily challenges as we respond to the changing COVID-19 situation and recovery of
services.

2.4

With the above in mind and with limited planning resource for the integrated
commissioning work due to the Joint Head of Planning and Performance being on

Page 54

maternity leave and recruitment to cover for this role being unsuccessful, a light-touch
approach to strategic planning for 2022/23 has been used by rolling over ongoing
actions identified in the 2021/22 plan. In addition, any new or expanded areas from the
NHS Planning Guidance for 2022/23 have been included along with any local priorities
identified by managers. Capacity will be re-assessed as the year progresses. In order
to ensure that every action in the draft plan for 2022/23 is assessed and prioritised
appropriately, managers have reviewed their proposed 2022/23 actions.
2.5

Integrated Commissioning for Health and Care in Salford aims to provide high quality
person-centred care for all, putting Salford people at the heart of everything we do. In
support of this, the six strategic themes outlined in the plan remain the same as in
previous years and consist of:







2.6

3.
3.1

An initial draft plan has been considered by the Integrated Leadership Team of the
CCG and Council and the Shadow Locality Board, with comments and feedback
received for further refinement and development. Finance has conducted an initial
comparison / review of the operational plan against the financial plan.

Draft Integrated Commissioning Plan 2022/23
The Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2022/23 is attached to this paper at
Appendix 1 (refer to pages 3-9 for Adult Services) for information, comment,
assurance and endorsement. It outlines high level priorities for each of the strategic
programme areas from 1st April 2022 until 31st March 2023 to ensure the CCG and
City Council play a leading role in delivering the Salford Locality Plan for local people.
There are six strategic programme areas outlined in the plan; these include:







3.2

Children’s and maternity services
Adults Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Quality, safety, innovation, and research
Enabling transformation

Children’s and maternity services
Adults Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Quality, safety, innovation, and research
Enabling transformation

It is important to note that detailed local plans are still being finalised with colleagues
from the CCG and Salford City Council and this plan may be subject to in year change,
for example due to national guidance or transition to the Greater Manchester (GM)
Integrated Care System (ICS).

Page 55

4.

Planning for the future

4.1

With the development of the Greater Manchester Integrated Care System, greater
system working across Salford will need to be established. Therefore, initial meetings
have been set up with all health and care organisations across Salford to share
approaches to objective setting and planning, and to consider how we can plan for
2022-23 and going forward in a more joined up manner. Two meetings have taken
place to date with different partners. There is appetite from all partners to align our
planning, though recognition that it will take time to move to a joint approach. This
Salford Planning Network will meet again in May and report progress to the Shadow
Locality Board.

4.2

The 2022-23 Integrated Commissioning Plan has a focus on the restoration of services
and reducing COVID-19 backlogs, however, it is impossible to completely predict what
ongoing impact COVID-19 will have, or indeed whether we may experience additional
waves of the virus. This plan will therefore remain dynamic to ensure that we c an
respond rapidly to any changing needs within our local population or health and care
system as a result of COVID-19, or indeed other external factors.

5.
5.1

Recommendations
The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to:



note the content of this report for information and assurance
review, comment and endorse the content of the Adults Integrated
Commissioning plan

Fiona Smith
Risk & Assurance Manager

APPENDICES:
Appendix 1 – Draft Integrated Commissioning Plan 2022/23

Page 56

Health and Social Care
Commissioning in Salford
Integrated Commissioning
Annual Plan 2022-23

Page 57

page 1

Salford Health and Social Care Commissioning - Plan on a Page 2022-23 DRAFT
Salford is a place where everyone can enjoy the best opportunities that Salford has to offer.

SALFORD LOCALITY
PLAN

Vision

People in Salford will get the best start in life, will go on to have a fulfilling and productive adulthood, will be able to manage their health well into their older age and die in a dignified manner in a setting of their choosing.
People across Salford will experience health on a parallel with the current ‘best’ in Greater Manchester (GM), and the gaps between communities wil l be narrower than they have ever been before.

Our Values
Strategic Aims
and
Programmes

Page 58

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING PLAN

Starting Well

Living Well

Ageing Well

Places, Communities and
Neighbourhoods

Enablers

Children in Salford will have the Best Early
Start.

People will value being and feeling well in
Salford.

People in Salford will live independent Active
Older Age.

Salford places will promote health and
wellbeing.

Partners in Salford will Enable
Transformation.

Children and Young People will Develop
Well in Salford.

Carers in Salford will be supported to be and
feel well.

Salford offers best care for Later life and
Dying well.

Communities and Neighbourhoods in Salford
will promote health and wellbeing.

We will work together to Deliver our
Locality Plan.

Priorities

Further details about
the aims and
programmes
outlined here can be
found in Salford’s
Integrated
Commissioning
Annual Plan 2021-22

Collaborate

Innovate

Integrity

Pride

Passion

People

Personal Responsibility

High quality, person-centred care for all - we put Salford people at the heart of everything we do
Children’s and Maternity
Services

Adult Services

We want all children and young
people in Salford to achieve
their potential.

We want all adults in Salford to live
independent, fulfilling and productive
lives which will help them to manage
their own health and wellbeing and
ensure a healthy life
expectancy. For those that need
care and help, we want them to feel
confident that their care is
compassionate, of high quality and
meets their needs.

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES
Children’s
Children’s
Children’s
Children’s

Care
Health
Mental Health
Public Health

All Age Mental Health

Primary Care

Quality, Safety, Innovation
and Research

Enabling Transformation

We want Salford to be a city where
good mental health, a good start in
life, a family approach to mental
wellbeing, the ability to adapt and
manage adversity and recognition
of the wider factors affecting
mental health are supported
throughout the life course; from
preparing for a new baby, into
adulthood and throughout older
age.

We want primary medical
services in Salford to continue
reducing inequalities across
the city and meeting the
needs of the diverse, growing
and changing population.

We want to be the safest health
and social care system in the
country.

We want to deliver ‘outstanding’
corporate services, through
highly sk illed and motivated staff,
that enable the delivery of new
models of care, high quality
outcomes, social value and
financial benefits.

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES

Adults Social Care
Adults Care Pathways
Adults Community Health Care &
Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise (VCSE)
Adults Public Health
Urgent Care Services
Elective Care
Adults Mental Health
Mental Health Crisis and Hospital to
Home
Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT)

Adults Mental Health
Children’s Mental Health
Mental Health Crisis and Hospital
to Home
Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT)

Primary Care
Primary Care
Primary Care
Variation and
Primary Care
Primary Care

Digital
Estates
Reducing
Inequalities
Transformation
Workforce

Safeguarding
Quality
Safer Salford
Medicines Optimisation
Continuing Health Care /
Funded Nursing Care
Innovation and Research

Statutory duties, Governance
and Policy
Financial Management
Strategic Planning and Risk
Contracting
Estates
Information Management and
Technology (IM&T)
Engagement, Inclusion and
Development, HR and Social
Value
Integrated Care System (ICS)

page 2

Adult Services
Executive Lead

Karen Proctor; Charlotte Ramsden

Lead Member

Cllr. John Merry

Joint Chairs

Cllr. John Merry; Dr. Jeremy Tankel

Clinical Lead

Tom Regan

We want all adults in Salford to live independent, fulfilling and productive lives which
will help them to manage their own health and wellbeing and ensure a healthy life
expectancy. For those that need care and help, we want them to feel confident that
their care is compassionate, of high quality and meets their needs.
Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Adults Social Care

Develop commissioning standards for technology enabled care
Implement the business plan, review the service model and
undertake improvement programme with the Independent Living
Service (NEW)
Place Holder: a more detailed work plan for ASC is currently
being developed (NEW)

Adults Care Pathway

Evaluate impact of investment in 24/7 integrated End of Life
Care specification
Work with Salford Care Organisation and Neuro Integrated
Delivery Network to support the implementation of the single
Greater Manchester inpatient neurorehabilitation service
Agree a plan relating to the review of provision at The Maples
Confirm the long term commissioning arrangements for Oviva
Diabetes Support from April 2023 in light of the Greater
Manchester evaluation of structured education due in summer
2022 (NEW)
Amend the service specification for the Anti-Coagulation service
in the light of self-testing and direct oral anticoagulants
(DOACs), in light of PCN DES targets
Evaluate capacity and resources for End of Life Care, including
reviews of the care home facilitators service palliative care
counselling service

Page 59

page 3

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
As a result of legislative changes to the Medical Certificate of
Cause of Death (MCCD), work with GP practices to
communicate, implement and monitor changes (NEW)
Working with partners increase uptake of the Diabetes
Prevention Programme in Salford (NEW – PG)
Working with partners increase uptake of lifestyle services
including low calorie diets, Digital Weight Management
Programme and digitally supported self-management services in
Salford (NEW – PG)

Adults Community Health Care & System partners to review, clarify responsibilities/scope/remit
Voluntary, Community and Social and re-invigorate the approach to neighbourhood leadership to
Enterprise (VCSE)
build, improve and further develop integrated neighbourhood
delivery (Locality wide workstream) (NEW)
Work with Salford City Council colleagues to ensure there is
clarity around the various separate specifications within the CVS
contract for 2023/24 and beyond
Work with colleagues to understand if a review of community
cardiology services (e.g. Heart Failure, Rapid Access Chest
Pain Clinic (RACPC)) is required
Develop agreed programme of service improvement of the
services delivered by Aspire
Confirm commissioning arrangements for Salford’s
oximetry@home service
Confirm commissioning arrangements for Salford’s community
COVID services
Oversee the Third Sector fund (NEW)
Support the implementation, measurement and further
development of Tier 1 Community Diagnostic Centres for Salford
(NEW)
Adults Public Health

Develop an equity based Public Health Outcomes Framework
(PHOC) with Salford Community Leisure (SCL) for their
community-based delivery
Oversee a strategic review of SCL Public Health commissioned
services
Publish and implement Salford Physical Activity Framework
Sustain the CURE model and implement the GM service
Specification and regular performance monitoring
Set up a task and finish group to navigate the Sexual Health
service (SHS) recommissioning process or to improve the
existing SHS contract for the extension period, once the
approach has been agreed (NEW)
Navigate the recommissioning process for substance misuse
services and agree service specification improvements and
timescales (NEW)

Page 60

page 4

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Set up a working group to develop an inclusive Communications
and Engagement plan that supports Public Health agendas
especially related to risk taking behaviours, using behavioural
insights approaches (NEW)
Further develop the Public Health Engagement and Inclusion
network of community organisations and leaders to enable
ongoing two-way dialogue with underserved communities
around health inequalities (NEW)
Develop and implement the approach for a strengths and assetbased JSSNA (Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs
Assessment)
Develop joint working with Specialist Welfare Rights and Debt
Advice service to tackle health inequalities and triangulate data
from across council services for the JSSNA (NEW)
Develop a whole system approach to reduce smoking
prevalence in Salford including relaunching the tobacco harms
group and strategy development
Management of Health Care Associated Infection:
Monitor C. difficile and methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus
aureus (MRSA) rates and develop work programmes to support
the maintenance or possible reduction in rates.
Management of Health Care Associated Infection:
Work across the health and social care system to support the
reduction of Escherichia coli (E. coli) rates.
Commission and implement a population health focused, age
well service that supports the WHO’s (World Health
Organisation) Age Friendly City model
Establish governance and oversight arrangements and agree a
system-wide falls prevention programme (NEW)
Develop a system wide approach to social prescribing in Salford
Work with the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and
neighbourhoods to agree and implement the public health and
development plan
Develop the prioritisation process for annual JSSNA and wider
intelligence programme to also inform engagement and
inclusion activities
Support Salford Lung Health Check Programme
Lead the COVID response and recovery into BAU infectious
disease control working across council, NHS and wider partners,
dealing with surges and outbreaks
Develop All Age Obesity Strategy encompassing food, physical
activity and place interventions
Undertake community campaigns for public health and wellbeing
building on the Five Ways to Wellbeing, Healthy Living

Page 61

page 5

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Pharmacies, and the mental health champions work of Partners
in Salford (NEW)
Finalise the cancer JSSNA and build on assets for cancer and
CVD prevention linked to PCN / neighbourhoods (NEW)
Expand the Programme of COVID risk health checks, workplace
health, and uptake of NHS Health checks (NEW)
Deliver the Health Improvement Service contract as a whole with
particular focus on the re-establishment of the community
development function and expansion of the emotional wellbeing
service offer (NEW)
Deliver the Community Vaccination Champion grant Programme
(NEW)
Continue to lead the Community Outreach and Wellbeing
response to COVID recovery, including the provision of outreach
and engagement, supporting vaccination amongst at risk
groups, and Long Covid recovery support (NEW)
Ensure the successful delivery of the PHE Enhanced Adult
Weight Management service (NEW)
Expand the current Covid Risk Health Check offer to encompass
a holistic Workplace Wellbeing service offer (NEW)
Continue to work with SRFT and Adult Social Care to develop
the Community Led Support and Wellbeing pathway within
hospital discharge and within neighbourhoods (Locality wide
workstream) (NEW)
Improve uptake in the COVID vaccination and reducing
inequalities, roll out additional boosters and surges in line with
national guidance (NEW - PG)
Develop recovery plan for NHS public health screening and
routine immunisations using lessons learn from COVID reducing
inequalities (NEW - PG)
Develop Public health inequalities strategy to support the
recovery plan and other PH plans (NEW - PG)
Lead JSSNA process that contributes to population health
management (NEW - PG)
Deliver further analytics capability for NHS data and PCN data
for segmentation and risk stratification (NEW - PG)
Place marker: Add action about what we will do with data and
who will lead it (NEW PG)
We will work with partners for a whole system response to the
planning guidance requirements and especially work with the
PCNs on the Salford Standard and wider population health
developments.
Planning guidance requirements:

Page 62

page 6

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions




Urgent Care Services

Develop robust plans for the prevention of ill-health, led by a
nominated senior responsible officer (SRO). These plans
should reflect the primary and secondary prevention
deliverables as outlined in the NHS Long Term Plan, and the
key local priorities agreed by the ICS. Plans should set out
how system allocations will be deployed to:
Progress against the NHS Long Term Plan high impact
actions to support respiratory, stroke and cardiac care,
implementing new models of care and rehabilitation,
including remote and digital models, and increasing
respiratory, hypertension, atrial fibrillation and high
cholesterol detection and monitoring/control to pre-pandemic
levels.

Undertake and report on a second evaluation of EPiC24 pilot
model by September 2022 and facilitate a commissioning
decision for 23/24 onwards
Maintain accreditation with UTC standards and consider impact
of changes to use of CCG extended access monies on financial
sustainability of EPiC24 model (NEW)
Facilitate agreement of strategic intent regarding the transfer of
delivery of extended access from EPiC24 model to PCNs and
facilitate transfer where PCNs have indicated an intention to
directly deliver and demonstrate readiness (NEW)
Facilitate the transfer of CCG extended access to PCN delivery
(or sub-contracting) under the Network DES Enhanced Access
service offer from October 2022.
Review access to Acute Paediatric Services i.e. Paediatric
Assessment and Decision Area (PANDA) Unit provision and
paediatric inpatient and surgical beds
Work with system partners to establish robust monitoring for and
reduction of community service waiting lists (NEW – PG)
Work with system partners to roll out virtual wards in line with
national expectations (NEW – PG)
Work with system partners to design, plan for and commission
Anticipatory Care services in line with the forthcoming national
operating model for Anticipatory Care (NEW – PG)
Work with GM and NCA/GMMH to promote and understand use
of digital treatment solutions as per digital plan (NEW – PG)
Consider the requirement to deliver radical improvements in
quality and availability against national data requirements and
clinical standards, including the priority areas of urgent care
response and musculoskeletal (MSK), developing and
implementing an action plan as appropriate (NEW – PG)
Identify and agree 10 additional discharge to assess beds (on
top of the existing 60 beds at Bevan Unit) to help facilitate
discharge from hospital. Maintain flexibility within the
Community bed base (Locality wide workstream) (NEW – PG)

Page 63

page 7

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Work with Salford Care Organisation to agree and monitor a
benefits realisation plan for the hospital discharge Homefirst
investment (Locality wide workstream) (NEW)
Continue to monitor the two hour community response and work
to the agreed specification and implementation programme
(NEW – PG)
Work with Salford Care Organisation to agree and monitor a
benefits realisation plan for the Urgent Response Team and
Homesafe Team investment (Locality wide workstream) (NEW)

Elective Care

Ensure Salford’s population have optimum access to
independent sector hospital (i.e. Oaklands) capacity
Support Northern Care Alliance (NCA) Urology Transformation
Implementation
Support the delivery of system elective care recovery with an
ambition to deliver over 10% more elective activity than before
the pandemic and reduce long waits
Review current capacity for Vasectomy services to meet the
needs of Salford’s population
Support development of Dermatology services across Greater
Manchester and progress local workstreams (e.g. Clinical
education & training Programme, advice & guidance)
Support development of rapid access diagnostics for Salford’s
cancer patients
Support improvements in diagnostic performance
Outpatient reform: Ensure main providers meet 30%
requirements from Long Term Plan (Digital)
Review access to orthopaedic elective surgery following the
development of the NCA Orthopaedic single shared service
Deliver local actions outlined in ICBs cancer plan, and aligned to
GM cancer plan & national planning requirements
Support and monitor the roll-out of the new provision for NOUS
(NEW)
Support the NCA to undertake EIAs and QIAs related to
proposed secondary care service changes (as a result of COVID
impact and PAHT disaggregation) and progress proposals
through locality governance structures (NEW)
Support and review local plans to progress outpatient reform
including the expansion in uptake of PIFU, use of referral
optimisation / specialist advice services (i.e. A&G, Consultant
Connect, RAS) in line with national planning requirements
Support the development of the NCA’s Salford Locality
Community Diagnostic Centre business case and
implementation. This will support delivery of the required
increase in diagnostic capacity to a minimum of 120%

Page 64

page 8

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Adults Mental Health

Undertake suicide prevention training Programme with key
frontline workers
Oversee the citywide rollout of Living Well and the begin
transformation of Community Mental Health Teams
Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health
including Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
and early intervention to improve attachment and bonding
Develop diagnostic and post diagnostic services for ASD
(Autistic Spectrum Disorder) in line with national policy and
standards
Develop a Salford priorities Programme in response to the GM
Autism strategy
Improve and widen the offer for complex service
users/rehab/specialist placements, including repatriation

Mental Health Crisis and Hospital Improve crisis care response in Salford including early
to Home
intervention/prevention and step down support for Young People
in distress (Parachute) and improve co-ordination across
pathways and between services (NEW)
Review mental health care pathways including:
- Role and function of adult mental health residential care
- Supported accommodation
Oversee the implementation of the Urgent Care Listening
Lounge and the phased approach to opening up access
Improving Access to
Psychological Therapies (IAPT)

Improve pathways between Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT) services and key physical health services such
as Health Psychology, Cardiology, Chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD) and Diabetes, and explore potential
of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT Long Term
Conditions (LTCs) Five Year Forward View (FYFV) ambition
Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to IAPT in accordance
with GM recovery plans and national planning guidance

Page 65

page 9

Children’s and Maternity Services
Executive Lead

Charlotte Ramsden; Karen Proctor

Lead Member

Cllr. Jim
Cammell

Joint Chairs

Cllr. Jim Cammell; Dr. Nick Browne

Clinical Lead

Wan Ley-Yeung

We want all children and young people in Salford to achieve their potential.

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Children's Care

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to Children's Care in
accordance with GM recovery plans and planning guidance
Embed and further develop an integrated locality model to
ensure families, children and young people (0-25 years) are
offered early help which is timely and empowers families to take
control of their lives
Explore the integration of transitional and contextual
safeguarding and develop an overarching strategy with partners
and complex safeguarding teams
Implement domestic abuse services for children's and adult
services
Implement the Family Partnership Model in Children's social
care and evaluate the impact in Early Help services
Evidence a reduction in the number of parents who have
repeated children looked after following birth, through the
Strengthening Families Programme; and engage the Early Help
Neighbourhood Group to identify gaps and scale
Implement a whole system approach to trauma and adversity
and link to Greater Manchester developments
Implement the business case for the revised needs-led
integrated neuro-development pathway for children and young
people aged 0-25
Implement the recruitment and retention strategy for children's
services workforce
Produce an all age Adolescence Strategy
Refine the Route29 offer to include younger children
Deliver the SEND Strategy and action plan

Page 66

page 10

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Refresh the Salford Employment Partnership Skills Strategy and
action plan
Review the council's Employment Skills offer and package of
support
Support effective leadership in schools (supporting effective
learning, improving school governance, strengthening
safeguarding)
Ensure there is sufficiency and quality of school provision
Oversee the Invest to save transformation Programmes (NEW)
Implement the Strengthening Families extension (NEW)
Implement the extension of Family Group Conferencing (NEW)
Implement the Choose to Change Programme (NEW)
Implement the extension of Route 29 (NEW)
Implement Early Help in the Bridge (NEW)
Implement and Pilot the Parachute team development (NEW)

Children's Health

Identify the needs and options for paediatric End of Life and
Palliative Care services
Following approval of the business case, support the
implementation and monitoring of newly commissioned
Paediatric Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy services
(NEW)
Work with system partners to implement projects related to the
reduction of paediatric avoidable admissions including a review
and refresh of the Gastroenterology pathway implemented in
2020
Implement the strategy for individual budgets for children and
young people
Following agreement of the amended Paediatric Ophthalmology
service specification embed and monitor new arrangements
(NEW)
Review and monitor the Ingleside Partner Collaborative (NEW)
Support the implementation and monitor the delivery of
Community Paediatrics following approval of the business case
in 21/22 (NEW)
Agree a local plan in response to the Greater Manchester
services specification for Children’s Community Nursing team
Evaluate implementation of paediatric Speech Language and
Communication Needs specification
Agree a business case for Paediatric Orthotics and MSK (NEW)
Implement the Paediatric Asthma Care Bundle (NEW)

Page 67

page 11

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Review of the Healthy Start Vitamins (vitamin D)
commission/service specification and resulting actions in light of
GM population health review (NEW)
Implement Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD) quality
standards (NEW)
Support the implementation of local paediatric long Covid clinics
and pathways (NEW)

Children's Mental Health

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to
provide early intervention to improve attachment and bonding
Monitor the impact of the Integrated Transitions policy
Review counselling for children and young people within Salford
(including bereavement and palliative care)
- the provider served notice on the contract and the review
needs to be re-commissioned
Continue to review and report on services in light of COVID
recovery - determine and implement restoration activities
relevant to children's mental health in accordance with GM
recovery plans and national planning guidance
Delivery of Thrive Training and Workforce Development
Programme (including suicide Awareness/ASIST, Mental health
first Aid, Connect 5, LGBTQ+ and other identified needs
Develop an approach to personal budgets in mental health
Develop an approach to supporting the mental health needs of
children with special educational needs and disability (SEND)

Children's Public Health

Refresh and implement the Children’s Obesity Strategic Action
Plan working with partners to scope future actions around food,
physical activity and place
Implement and evaluate the impact of the Greater Manchester
(GM) Oral Transformation Programme and seek other
opportunities to improve oral health in children
Continue to work with ICB locality on the redesign of the weight
management pathway and strengthen the services for children
and young people
Identify the needs of children and young people in Salford to
make healthy choices, stay safe and minimise risky behaviours
by undertaking a needs assessment and social insight work
Undertake a review of unintentional injuries and develop a plan
to reduce the causal factors
Review the GM Children’s Oral Health Programme and map
dental extractions locally to develop a local plan for intervention
Deliver the Holiday Food and Activity Programme for 2022
through the delivery of 3,500 food and activity scheme places for
children on free school meals at Easter, Summer and Christmas
(NEW)

Page 68

page 12

All Age Mental Health
Executive Lead

Karen Proctor; Charlotte Ramsden

Lead Member

Cllr. Damian Bailey

Clinical Lead

Dr. Jenny Walton

We want Salford to be a city where good mental health, a good start in life, a family
approach to mental wellbeing, the ability to adapt and manage adversity and
recognition of the wider factors affecting mental health are supported throughout the
life course; from preparing for a new baby, into adulthood and throughout older age.
Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Adults Mental Health

Undertake suicide prevention training Programme with key
frontline workers
Oversee the citywide rollout of Living Well and the begin
transformation of Community Mental Health Teams
Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health
including Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
and early intervention to improve attachment and bonding
Develop diagnostic and post diagnostic services for ASD
(Autistic Spectrum Disorder) in line with national policy and
standards
Develop a Salford priorities Programme in response to the GM
Autism strategy
Improve and widen the offer for complex service
users/rehab/specialist placements, including repatriation

Mental Health Crisis and Hospital Improve crisis care response in Salford including early
to Home
intervention/prevention and step down support for Young People
in distress (Parachute) and improve co-ordination across
pathways and between services
Review mental health care pathways including:
- Role and function of adult mental health residential care
- Supported accommodation
Oversee the implementation of the Urgent Care Listening
Lounge and the phased approach to opening up access (NEW)

Page 69

page 13

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Improving Access to
Psychological Therapies (IAPT)

Improve pathways between Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT) services and key physical health services such
as Health Psychology, Cardiology, Chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease (COPD) and Diabetes, and explore potential
of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT Long Term
Conditions (LTCs) Five Year Forward View (FYFV) ambition
Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and
implement restoration activities relevant to IAPT in accordance
with GM recovery plans and national planning guidance

Children's Mental Health

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to
provide early intervention to improve attachment and bonding
Monitor the impact of the Integrated Transitions policy
Review counselling for children and young people within Salford
(including bereavement and palliative care)
- the provider served notice on the contract and the review
needs to be re-commissioned
Continue to review and report on services in light of COVID
recovery - determine and implement restoration activities
relevant to children's mental health in accordance with GM
recovery plans and national planning guidance
Delivery of Thrive Training and Workforce Development
Programme (including suicide Awareness/ASIST, Mental health
first Aid, Connect 5, LGBTQ+ and other identified needs
Develop an approach to personal budgets in mental health
Develop an approach to supporting the mental health needs of
children with special educational needs and disability (SEND)

Page 70

page 14

Primary Care
Executive Lead

Karen Proctor

Chair

Brian Wroe

Lead Member

Cllr. Jim Cammell; Cllr John Merry

We want primary medical services in Salford to continue reducing inequalities
across the city and meeting the needs of the diverse, growing and changing
population.
Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Primary Care Digital

Develop a dashboard to support Primary Care Networks (PCNs)
in the development, delivery and monitoring of the Impact and
Investment Fund (IIF) metrics
Contribute for the Salford locality to the GM ICS IM&T plan with
local sections on digital inclusion, NHS app usage, increased
digital maturity in Primary Care and net zero (NEW – PG)
Implement the GM Primary Care Digital First Programme (NEW
– PG)

Primary Care Estates

Determine the scope of The Quays development informed by
the progress of The Quays pilot and progress to outline
specification
Progress the Lower Broughton scheme to approved agreement
with developer
Progress development of Primary Care estate in Irlam
Progress development of The Limes
Transition the one remaining practice to the new premises in
Little Hulton and facilitate agreement regarding community
services use
Develop business plan for approval for Primary Care in
Pendleton Leisure Centre (NEW)

Primary Care Reducing Variation Oversee delivery of the 2022-23 Salford Standard
and Inequalities
Develop the 2023-24 Salford Standard
Implement the monitoring and review requirements of the
refreshed Special Allocation Scheme

Page 71

page 15

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Improve access to Primary Care for vulnerable groups, e.g. the
asylum seeker population
Work with partners to understand and develop plans to address
inequalities and unexplained variation across GP practices in
Salford (NEW – PG)

Primary Care Transformation

Implement plans for the community Optometry / Ophthalmology
services
Review the Care Homes Medical Practice service specification
to align to the requirements of the Primary Care Network (PCN)
Direct Enhanced Service (DES) and to consider whether or not it
is appropriate to include support for extra care facilities
Review and specify future requirements of Salford Primary Care
Together (SPCT) COVID services
Oversee the delivery of the requirements of the 2021/22 PCN
DES in terms of providing support, monitoring and assurance
Review implementation of the business case for adult eating
disorders
Support the COVID Vaccination Programme and oversee its
transition to secure future arrangements (NEW – PG)
Work with Greater Manchester to transition to new
commissioning arrangements for Primary Care (NEW – PG)

Primary Care Workforce

Ensure PCN Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme funded
workforce is developed in line with local need/strategy and
assurance mechanisms transition as required into the ICS
Work with locality partners across GM to develop a GM standard
for non-clinical workforce roles with underpinning career
pathways
Implement initiatives to maximise the capacity, resilience and
retention of the Primary Care workforce, harnessing
opportunities to work more collaboratively across both the GM
ICS and the wider Salford locality system

Page 72

page 16

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Executive Lead

Claire Vaughan

Clinical Lead

Dr. Jeremy Tankel

We want to be the safest health and social care system in the country.
Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Safeguarding

Determine and Implement ICS place level Safeguarding
governance arrangements (NEW)
Ensure the ICB continues to meet its statutory duties in relation
to safeguarding children and adults, operating as a key strategic
partner within the safeguarding partnership arrangements.
Deliver targeted work on / including:
- Complex safeguarding
- Domestic abuse
- Self-neglect and neglect
- MCA/ LPS
Review ICS Safeguarding strategy for delivery at place
Further develop the safeguarding assurance framework across
all providers

Quality

Review Quality and Safety strategy for locality aspects of
delivery in an Integrated Care System (ICS)
Ensure collaboration with key stakeholders and patient safety
specialists to embed the new Patient Safety strategy (updated
February 2021) across the system. Instigate a clearer focus on
the patient voice and patient safety inequalities, particularly
Older People and Learning Disability (LD) service users
Continue to work collaboratively with system partners in a
changing health economy to monitor quality assurance in a
system that lives with COVID
Ensure the ICB continues to meet its statutory duties in relation
to the ongoing delivery, monitoring and evaluation of Care and
Treatment Reviews (CTRs)
Share learning in relation to quality across multiple providers,
e.g. acute and Mental Health (MH) providers
Review and improve soft intelligence quality information
including practice, Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) and
patient feedback

Page 73

page 17

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Redefine quality assurance and oversight in urgent and
emergency care system (NEW)

Safer Salford

Continue to implement system-wide learning and improvement
as a result of Safeguarding Reviews (including child
safeguarding practice review (CSPR) and Safeguarding adult
review (SAR), mortality reviews (including child deaths)
Agree improvement programmes for delivery in 2022/23 as part
of the Safer Salford Programme and ensure that they underpin
the adult priorities around ASC targeting care homes and
domiciliary care
Continue to support quality improvement in Primary Care with a
focus on upskilling PCN quality improvement initiatives
Reduce the risk of Health Care Associated Infections (including
undertaking audits of health care settings and learning from
outbreaks)

Medicines Optimisation

Contribute to the locality Best Value Programme through
Primary Care prescribing budget efficacies
Continue with the integrated medicines improvement work with
NCA Salford Pharmacy team and Greater Manchester Mental
Health (GMMH)
Support the Delivery the Primary Care Networks Direct
Enhanced Service (DES) medicines optimisation priorities:
- Reduce the rate of low priority prescribing
- Antimicrobial resistance
- Low carbon inhaler use
- Drugs that can cause dependencies (DOACs)
Reduce the environmental impact of prescribing by developing a
system wide approach to inhalers and waste
Contribute to shaping Integrated Pharmacy and Medicines
Optimisation (IPMO) across the Greater Manchester Integrated
Care System (GM ICS)
Support the medicines optimisation elements of the COVID
Vaccination Programme
Co-commissioning network integrated pharmacist service (NEW)

Continuing Health Care (CHC) /
Funded Nursing Care

Continue the move to paper light working and addressing
compatibility with Salford City Council (SCC) Information
Technology (IT) interfaces
Ensure the national Discharge to Assess processes are
delivered safely and in line with eligibility for NHS Funding
through links with Integrated Discharge team and sharing of
appropriate information
Support the Quality Innovation Network (QIN) and quality in care
home agenda

Page 74

page 18

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Implement a revised neuro-rehabilitation pathway to enable the
safe commissioning of quality assured slow stream neuro-rehab
services for individuals assessed as requiring this care
Co-design an alternative offer of delivering care using the CHC
National framework and Personal Health Budgets (PHB)
guidance to meet the cultural needs of the Orthodox Jewish
Community and utilise the learning to allow spread of this offer
of PHB
Provide clinical support to maximise the use of The Maples and
reduce the reliance on out of area (OOA) placements
Work with LPS lead/safeguarding to ensure LPS is embedded in
care of those eligible for CHC

Innovation and Research

Embed research and innovation, and quality improvement into
the culture and ethos for the Salford ‘Building Back Better’
recovery plans
Deliver an Innovation and Improvement Fund to support and
embed improvement and innovation capacity and capability
within Primary Care and partners
Develop and deliver a 12 month work plan for Quality
Improvement, Research and Innovation aligning to the move to
Integrated Care System (ICS) structures

Page 75

page 19

Enablers (Salford Clinical Commissioning Group Only)
Executive Lead

David Warhurst; Hannah Dobrowolska

Clinical Lead

Dr. Tom Tasker

We want to deliver ‘outstanding’ corporate services, through highly skilled and
motivated staff, that enable the delivery of new models of care, high quality
outcomes and financial benefits.

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions

Statutory duties, Governance and Ensure the CCG/ICB at locality continues to meet its wide range
Policy
of statutory duties, maintaining and improving its robust
governance arrangements
Strategic Planning and Risk
Design and implement service group portals within the Pentana
Browser to visually display dynamic service group performance,
risk and action plan information
Work with locality partners to agree and deliver a place based
system annual planning process for 2023-24 incorporating
national and ICS Programmes to deliver a balanced budget
across pooled / integrated funds, contributing to locality level
annual planning
Undertake joint review of local risk management strategies in
light of ICS changes
Estates

Welcome CCG staff back to the office (NEW)
Oversee the implementation of effective hybrid working for CCG
staff (NEW)

Contracting

Keep up to date with national changes in contracting and give
advice to locality on contract arrangements, both during the
recovery phase and future planning, including payment reform
and make recommendations to shape Salford approach
Ensure the CCG/ICB at locality continues to meet its statutory
duties / constitutional commitments in relation to performance,
maintaining and improving its robust performance management
and reporting arrangements

Information Management and
Technology (IM&T)

Deliver Salford implementation project to ensure maximum
benefit from GM care record solutions including: End of Life and
Social Care engagement. (NEW – PG)

Page 76

page 20

Strategic Programme

Draft 2022-23 Actions
Ensure providers of community health services, including ICScommissioned independent providers, can access the Local
Care Shared Record as a priority in 2022/23, to enable urgent
care response and virtual wards (NEW – PG)

Engagement, Inclusion and
Development, HR and Social
Value

Deliver the Communications work plan, covering both GM and
locality elements
Deliver the Integrated Engagement Team’s engagement work
plan, covering both GM and locality elements
Deliver the Organisational Development work plan, covering
both GM and locality elements
Deliver the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion work plan, covering
both GM and locality elements
Deliver the Social Value work plan with a focus on economic,
environmental and social action, covering both GM and locality
elements

Salford Locality Integrated Care
System (ICS) Transition

Manage and complete the Salford Locality Integrated Care
System (ICS) Transition Programme
Implement ICS place level leadership and governance
arrangements
Determine and implement financial plans and arrangements to
enact ICS changes
Determine and implement ICB arrangements for current CCG
functions and statutory duties
Support staff through ICS changes and complete ICS
communication, engagement, OD and HR actions
Determine and implement plans and arrangements to enact
CCG Close Down including IT, Finance, Statutory duties, etc
Determine and implement changes to how ICS functions are
delivered following establishment, within the locality and/or
between the locality and GM (NEW)

Page 77

page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Adult Commissioning Committee
AGENDA ITEM NO
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)
DATE OF MEETING 11 May 2022
Report of:

Adult Commissioning Report

Date of Paper:

28th April 2022

In case of query, please
contact:
Strategic Priorities:

Neil Cudby
neil.cudby1@nhs.net

(Please tick as appropriate)

Mayoral Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Adult Services
Children’s and Maternity Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation
Tackling poverty and inequality
Reducing Health Inequalities
Skills and Education (A Learning City)
Affordable Housing
Transport and Digital Connectivity
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency
Vibrant Place and Spaces
Creating an Economy for All

X
X
X
X
X

Purpose of Paper:
This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee
are kept abreast of developments and progress.

Page
1 79

Further information
How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council?

This paper provides an overview of a number
of key or emerging areas of commissioning
and provision relating to adult health and care
to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee
are kept abreast of developments and
progress.

How does this paper address health inequalities
and promote inclusion?

N/A

What risks may arise as a result of this paper
and how will they be mitigated?

N/A

Does this address any existing high risks facing
the organisation and how does it reduce them?

N/A

Are there any possible conflicts of interest
associated with this paper?

N/A

Will any current services or roles be affected by
issues within this paper and what are they?

N/A

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided.

Document Development
Has there been Public Engagement?

N/A

Has there been Clinical Engagement?

N/A

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically
N/A
and environmentally been considered?
Has there been an analysis of any impacts on
equality?

N/A

Has legal advice been obtained?

N/A

Has this been to any groups or committees for
engagement, comments, or approval?

N/A

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders
were involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments
were requested about any part of the work.

Page2 80

Adult Commissioning Report
1.

Executive Summary

This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments.
Items in this month’s report include:
 Orthopaedic Programme Board Update
2.

Orthopaedic Programme Board Update

Adult Commissioning Committee received an update in November 2021 on the development
of a single shared service for Orthopaedics across the Northern Care Alliance (NCA) to help
to deliver a number of fundamental benefits including, the ability to deliver higher quality, more
robust services at scale for all service users and the ability to eliminate unwarranted variation.
This update outlined the planned work of the Orthopaedic Programme Board (which has
representation from locality commissioners) which included:
 overseeing the mobilisation of the new single shared service leadership structure and
governance arrangements,
 establishment of a clinical reliability group,
 identification of a solution for Salford orthopaedic theatre capacity for
trauma/orthoplastics/hands
 management of the disaggregation from North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH)
including any changes to elective/trauma pathways between FGH and NMGH
 development of options for longer-term delivery of elective activity across the NCA
sites that provides sufficient capacity to meet demand
The update also outlined a potential long-term approach (Appendix 1) to the delivery of
elective activity by site, by sub-specialty, and incorporating future opportunities in relation to
trauma pathways that had been identified which would build upon the current role of Fairfield
as the NCA elective hub, delivering all NCA inpatient elective orthopaedic activity (although
some reconstructive elective surgery remains at Salford). Rochdale would continue to operate
as a day case unit for orthopaedic activity. Salford lower limb elective surgery and shoulder
arthroplasty would be delivered from Fairfield. Complex hand surgery would be delivered
within Salford as part of a single unit to co-locate the sub-specialty and support the delivery of
improved outcomes and productivity.
Adult Commissioning Committee raised a number of concerns in relation to this potential
approach (specifically around equity of access for patents in terms of further and additional
travel, and the carbon impact of this) and highlighted the importance of engaging with the
public around the issue of additional travel and requested an update from the NCA in relation
to how these points will be addressed by the Programme Board. The following update provided
by the Orthopaedic Programme Board aims to give ACC assurances that the concerns raised
by the committee have been noted and are planned to be addressed as part of the programme
board’s work.
3
Page
81

A dedicated programme and project manager have been allocated to the Orthopaedic Single
Shared Service Programme as of January 2022 and are currently developing the programme
delivery plan which can be shared once developed. As part of the programme plan and the
programmes assurance, a full EQIA will be completed using the NCA's Service Transformation
Equality Impact Assessment Tool. This will take into consideration any possible negative or
positive impacts that any future proposed changes may have upon a protected characteristic
and will suggest mitigations that can be put in place to prevent any negative impacts on our
patients. The programme manager has also logged the potential impact of additional travel as
a risk to the success of the Single Shared Service programme.
Clearly patient engagement will be key to understanding the extent of the impact of any future
changes and the programme will engage with the public on this where appropriate. As per the
previous update, we recognise the importance of understanding the impact on patients and in
particular the impact on inequalities, and communication to stakeholders, including the Health
and Social Care Scrutiny Panel, Healthwatch, referrers, and other localities. With feedback
from the ACC, the programme will start to design and develop a patient engagement plan and
build upon the previous engagement survey.
It is important to recognise that there has been no routine elective surgery for Orthopaedics at
Salford Royal Hospital for over 5 years now. Between 2015-2019, elective cases have been
operated on at Trafford General Hospital and therefore many patients have had to travel
outside of Salford for orthopaedic elective historically.
Since 2019, Fairfield General Hospital has been the NCA hub for lower limb elective surgery.
Currently, Salford patients are also being offered surgery at Fairfield for upper limb and hand
surgery to continue with COVID recovery and reduce our waiting lists. This is in line with the
approach across the whole of GM, where Fairfield is one of four elective hubs which has been
designated to protect orthopaedic elective capacity and address the backlog of patients
waiting for surgery. To date 1,076 Salford patients were offered their Orthopaedic surgery at
Fairfield or Rochdale, of this only 2 patients have refused to go to these sites for surgery.
Whilst there are some options to support patient travel as described below, it is recognised
that these don’t offer a complete solution. Existing travel options include NWAS for those
patients requiring specialist transport and the ‘Healthcare Travel Costs Scheme’ (HTCS)
which is available to patients that helps with the cost of travelling to hospital or other NHS sites
by subsidising the travel cost if the patient qualifies for certain allowances or benefits. Also,
taxis are booked and authorised by a senior manager in exceptional circumstances. As part
of the programme a Patient & Visitor Travel sub-group is being established; this group will aim
to enact the mitigations that are highlighted with the EQIA, further engage with patients and
visitors to understand their experiences, and explore options to help further with patient travel.
In terms of the carbon impact as a result of additional travel, our Head of Sustainability will be
engaged within the programme, and this will be reviewed within the Patient & Visitor Travel
sub-group with options considered to mitigate this. However, we would reiterate that some
additional travel to designated elective orthopaedic sites is likely to be unavoidable to ensure
that the NCA and wider GM address the significant backlog of patients waiting as a result of
the pause in elective surgery during the COVID pandemic.

Page4 82

Appendix 1: Outline of Potential Future Site Configuration for NCA orthopaedics

5
Page
83

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

ADULT COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE
11 MAY 2022
AGENDA ITEM NO 9: LOCALITY GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
Item for: Information

(Please delete as appropriate)

Report of:

Director of Commissioning

Date of Paper:

28 April 2022

In case of query, please contact:

Jenny Noble
Head of Governance and Policy
Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research
Adult Services
Children’s and Maternity Services
All Age Mental Health
Primary Care
Enabling Transformation
Tackling poverty and inequality
Reducing Health Inequalities
Skills and Education (A Learning City)
Affordable Housing
Transport and Digital Connectivity
Tackling the Climate Change Emergency
Vibrant Place and Spaces
Creating an Economy for All

Strategic Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)

Mayoral Priorities:
(Please tick as appropriate)

Purpose of Paper:
To provide an update on locality governance arrangements from 1 July 2022.

Page 85

X

Further information

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council?

How does this paper address health inequalities
and promote inclusion?

What risks may arise as a result of this paper
and how will they be mitigated?

Does this address any existing high risks facing
the organisation and how does it reduce them?

The main aim of the national establishment of
statutory Integrated Care Systems is to
provide opportunities to improve people’s
outcomes and experiences of care,
particularly for those in contact with different
services, through better integrating services
both within the NHS and across the health
and social care system. GM and Salford’s
plans aim to achieve this.
This focus on integration has the potential to
help services to have an impact on health
inequalities. These inequalities cannot be
addressed by the NHS alone because many
drivers of health lie outside health care. The
ICS model of partnership working across
NHS organisations, local government and
VCS organisations has the potential to make
a tangible difference.
The main risks to the ICS Transition are
associated with distraction from delivering ongoing objectives and staff retention. These
are being mitigated by a strong staff
communication and engagement programme.
The aim of the ICS changes is to address
risks associated with health inequalities and
sustainable services.
Conflicts of interests exist for all provider
organisations in the system which are
managed through conflicts of interest
policies. Specific conflicts also exist for
Governing Body and Executive Team whose
roles are directly impacted by these changes.
CCG staff will be impacted by these changes.

Are there any possible conflicts of interest
associated with this paper?

Will any current services or roles be affected by
issues within this paper and what are they?
Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided.
Document Development
Has there been Public Engagement?

Via the involvement of Healthwatch on the
Shadow Locality Board.
Yes, via the Shadow Locality Board.

Has there been Clinical Engagement?

Page 86

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically
and environmentally been considered?
Has there been an analysis of any impacts on
equality?

Has legal advice been obtained?

Has this been to any groups or committees for
engagement, comments, or approval?

Not yet.

This work has commenced with regard to HR
changes.
Through Salford City Council (the shared
legal service between Manchester and
Salford City Councils) and NHS routes
(through the GM secured legal support for the
ICS establishment with Browne Jacobson).
The content of this report has been to the
Salford Shadow Locality Board, though not
this report in its totality.

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were
involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were
requested about any part of the work.

Page 87

Locality Governance Arrangements
1.

Executive Summary

This paper provides an update on locality governance arrangements from 1 July 2022
following the disestablishment of the CCG/formation of the GM Integrated Care Board
(ICB), Salford Locality Board and Salford Provider Collaborative Board.

2.

Background

2.1

In July 2021, Her Majesty’s (HM) Government formally presented a ‘Health and Care
Bill’ to Parliament, setting out how it intends to reform the delivery of health and care
services in England through the establishment of ‘Integrated Care Systems’ (ICS).
These new, regional- level, statutory bodies will replace the functions and
responsibilities of Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and are to be in place and
active by a target date of 1 July 2022. Following agreement by both Houses on the
text of the Bill it received Royal Assent on 28 April. The Bill is now an act of Parliament
(law).

2.2

An NHS England and NHS Improvement (together known as NHSEI) ICS
Implementation Programme is leading national efforts to implement the Health and
Care Bill through legislation and issuing guidance, standards and frameworks for the
design of these new systems. A Greater Manchester (GM) ICS Transition
programme has been established to oversee the transition of the existing Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) to a statutory ICS. At a
local level, a Salford Locality ICS Transition Programme has been established,
responsible for the design and implementation of new locality-level (‘place-based’)
structures, the winding-down and closure of existing CCG structures and the transfer
of staff and assets to the new ICS model and design and implementation of new
locality integrated care governance.

2.3

This paper provides an update on activities and progress within the Salford Locality
ICS Transition Programme in particular. In addition, the latest stakeholder briefing for
the Greater Manchester Statutory Integrated Care System (ICS) is attached for
information.

3.

Salford Locality ICS Transition Programme

3.1

The Salford Locality ICS Transition Programme continues to respond to National and
Regional developments, while making good progress towards the establishment of
the Locality Operating Model, which has begun functioning in shadow form from
January 2022.

3.2

We are continuing to review Salford’s transition plans in light of the changed
establishment timescales (delayed from April to July 2022). Salford’s work in this area
has involved the whole system locality, including the CCG, SCC, Salford Care
Organisation (as part of the Northern Care Alliance), Greater Manchester Mental
Health, the VCSE sector, primary care and Healthwatch. A commitment remains to
establishing local structures as soon as is practicable to reduce risk and provide
stability to our people. To this end, Salford’s ICS Transition Programme is now moving

Page 88

towards stepping down workstreams as their objectives are achieved and ‘business
as usual’ is integrated into shadow structures.
3.3

At present, the programme is led by a Transition Board (now merged with the Health
and Care Commissioning Board) to lead on transition and business as usual work.
The programme has been organised in five workstreams including governance,
though workstream 4 has now ceased as the Provider Collaborative Board is
established. High-level updates are provided for Workstream 1 below:

3.4

Workstream 1: Place-based Governance, Accountability & Strategic Planning

3.4.1

From January 2022 the Salford Locality ICS Transition Programme Board together
with the Health and Care Commissioning Board have been meeting together as a
Shadow Locality Board. Draft Terms of Reference are currently being followed, which
will be reviewed and updated as more information is released from the GM ICB, for
example on locality delegations and financial arrangements.

3.4.2

Throughout this governance design and development work, legal advice has been
sought through Salford City Council (the shared legal service between Manchester
and Salford City Councils) and NHS routes (through the GM secured legal support for
the ICS establishment with Browne Jacobson) to ensure the appropriateness and
validity of the proposed structures which emerge. Additionally, key system
stakeholders have been consulted and informed throughout via active engagement,
information sharing and facilitated briefing sessions.

3.4.3

The governance arrangements will retain the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
alongside two new boards: The Locality Board and the Provider Collaborative Board.
This diagram will be updated over time, for example adding in sub-groups as the
Service and Finance Group and the Quality Reference Group for the Locality Board
but this is still work in progress.

Page 89

3.4.5

The interaction between Greater Manchester and Localities is outlined in the GM ICB
Functional Decision Map diagram below:

Work remains ongoing by a city-wide planning leads group on production of an
approach to system wide annual planning.
3.4.6

4.

A proposal in relation to the requirements for Clinical and Care Professional
Leadership (CCPL) was presented to the Shadow Locality Board in January 2022,
recommending the formation of a Clinical and Care Professional Senate. These
recommendations were supported but remain subject to change pending information
being released by GM ICB around locality delegation and funding.

Shadow Locality Board

4.1

The Shadow Locality Board will continue to meet until the end of June and there is a
proposal going to the next meeting regarding Locality Board dates. As summary of
the proposed principles, role and membership for the Locality Board is provided below
and further detail is available in the Salford Locality ICS Transition Programme Board
papers on request.

4.2

The updated proposed principles for the Locality Board are provided below:
We will:
1. Act in the best interests of the people of Salford
2. Commit to our shared vision and agreed strategic priorities

Page 90

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

4.3

Prioritise approaches which are asset based, neighbourhood focused and
integrated, promoting independence, self-care, prevention, early intervention and
service integration
Focus relentlessly on improving population health and reducing inequalities
Embrace innovation, social value and environmental sustainability
Keep focused on improving outcomes and delivering safe, effective and efficient
services
Listen to the needs and voices of all local communities
Listen to the views of staff and of clinical, professional and political leaders
Work in an actively inclusive way to create a culture of equals, recognising the
unique contribution each partner brings
Make decisions transparently, recognising organisational interests and openly
managing conflicts of interest
Collectively manage risks and share benefits, financial and otherwise
Uphold a positive culture through appropriate behaviours which build collaboration
Respect the tension and the complexity of system working, recognising that each
organisation remains sovereign: whilst decision-making responsibilities can be
shared, accountability cannot.

The updated proposed role of the Locality Board is provided below:
The Board will:
 Create a system culture that combines high ambition with strong mutual support,
fostering collaboration
 Lead the development of locality level strategy for health and care to improve
population health and outcomes, and reduce inequalities
 Oversee the co-ordination and transformation of local health and care services at
strategic level
 Strategically manage the resource allocation and integrated fund including sharing
risk and making investment/disinvestment decisions to shift funding towards
prevention and early intervention
 Approve recommendations from provider board in relation to service design,
where there is a significant financial impact or service change
 Provide quality and performance oversight and assurance, driving improvement
and addressing unwarranted variation to improve outcomes and deliver safe
services
 Align whole system clinical, political and organisational leadership across the
locality
 Agree the locality view in relation to Greater Manchester level decisions
 Provide dual accountability, from the locality to individual organisations (including
the Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board) and vice versa

4.4

The updated proposed organisational/sector/group level membership of the
Locality Board is provided below:



Salford City Council (SCC)
Greater Manchester Integrated Care Board (GM ICB) (from 1 July 2022) [covered
by NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) initially whilst in shadow
form]

Page 91











Primary Care sector (representing Primary Care Networks (PCNs), Salford
Primary Care Together (SPCT) and wider primary care providers including
pharmacy, optometry and dental)
Salford Care Organisation as part of the Northern Care Alliance NHS Foundation
Trust (SCO/NCA)
Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust (GMMH)
Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector (representing Salford
Community and Voluntary Services (CVS) and VCSE providers)
Healthwatch Salford (non-voting member)
Children’s representative from Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust (nonvoting member)
Continuing health care provider representative (TBC) (non-voting member)
Provider Collaborative
Salford Clinical and Care Professional Senate*

* The term Senate is being used in this report, noting that this may change as more consideration is
given to clinical and care professional engagement and the mechanisms for this

5.

Salford Provider Collaborative Board

5.1

The first meeting of the shadow board took place in April, and it is now considering its
proposed priority workstreams and sub-groups. A summary of the role of the Salford
Provider Collaborative Board (SPCB) and membership is provided below.

5.2

The purpose of the SPCB is to convert the Locality Board strategic intent into codesigned and coordinated delivery, in line with Salford Locality Plan priorities . The
programme of work will include oversight of service provision for children’s, adult’s
and all-age services, where there is a benefit of Salford providers working in a
collaborative way. The SPCB will contribute to:
• Integrated service planning
• Population health management
• Joint service delivery & transformation
• Connecting and supporting communities
• Financial sustainability

5.3

Membership of the Provider Collaborative Board is provided below:
• Salford City Council
• Salford Care Organisation
• GM Mental Health FT
• PCNs
• Salford Primary Care Together
• CVS
• VCSE Organisations
• Reps from LMC, LOC, LPC & PDC
• GM ICB
• Manchester FT CAMHS

6.

Commissioning Committees

Page 92

6.1

Providers have been invited to the Health and Care Commissioning Board (H&CCB)
and the Commissioning Committees since April 2021 (part 1) and part 2 since January
2022 as regular attendees. This was to support the move towards Integrated Care
Systems, where the traditional roles of providers and commissioners will be blurred,
with activity instead split by planning, designing and delivering services.

6.2

The current integrated commissioning arrangements including the existing
Commissioning Committees i.e. Adults, Children’s and Primary Care that report to
H&CCB will continue to meet until 30 June 2022. The next Adults Commissioning
Committee (ACC) meeting is scheduled to take place on Wednesday 15 June and a
further update will be provided at that meeting as this is expected to be the last one
although we are committed to engaging with all partners including members of ACC.

6.3

The business of ACC will transfer to the Locality Board (in terms of strategic planning)
and the Provider Collaborative Board (for design and delivery of health & care
services).

6.4

On behalf of the CCG and Council, the joint chairs of the Commissioning Committees
would like to thank all members of the Commissioning Committees for their
contributions to planning and designing health and care services in Salford and for the
productive and trusted relationships which have been nurtured.

6.
6.1

Recommendations
The Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to:


Note the update provided on locality governance arrangements from 1 July 2022
and that a further update on sub-groups will be provided at the next meeting.

Jenny Noble
Head of Governance and Policy

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
Building on Greater Manchester’s devolution integration experience: forming a
statutory integrated care system
Stakeholder briefing note 20 April 2022
Introduction
Welcome to the next update regarding Greater Manchester’s ongoing transition to a statutory
integrated care system from 1 July 2022. We previously shared an update with you in January
and want to give you a further update on progress, including an overview of why things are
changing, how the new system fits together in the wider context, recruitment, and some of the
work to date.
Why are things changing?
Across the country, integrated care partnerships (ICP) are being set up to help organisations
work better with the public to keep everyone healthier; plan and deliver health services more
effectively; make sure everyone is treated equally and fairly; help the NHS become as
efficient as possible, and also help it contribute to the wider economy.
The intention is that this will:
 improve the health of children and young people
 support people to stay well and independent
 help health and care services act sooner to help those with preventable conditions
 support those with long-term conditions or mental health issues
 care for those with multiple conditions, particularly as people get older
 get the best from collective resources so people get care as quickly as possible.
Here in Greater Manchester the new arrangements mark the latest stage in the city region’s
journey to more joined up working, which has developed since our health and social care
devolution deal in February 2015.
How does our Greater Manchester system fit together?
Our system will be called GM Integrated Care Partnership and will be made up of two
statutory elements:
 Greater Manchester Integrated Care Partnership Board, involving all the different
organisations which support people’s health and care
 NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care, a new organisation, overseen by a Board,
to support integration within the NHS to take a joint approach to agreeing and
delivering ambitions for the health of the population
In addition there will be similar partnerships in each of GM’s ten districts or localities.
Our system partnership will operate at three levels: neighbourhood, locality and Greater
Manchester and will have a single vision and strategy. Hospitals, GPs, community services
and other providers will come together to form collaboratives within all 3 levels.

Page 95

GM Integrated Care Partnership will bring together all the different organisations which
support people’s health and care and, working with our people and communities, will create
and oversee our region’s overall integrated care strategy which the wider system will work to
deliver.
Members of the Partnership (which is an evolution of the longstanding Health and Social
Care Partnership) come from all ten parts of GM, including all NHS organisations, councils,
GM Combined Authority, organisations from across the voluntary, community, faith and
social enterprise sectors and others all working together to help achieve our common vision.
The Board steering the work will be chaired by GM political lead for health and care, and
Tameside Council leader Councillor Brenda Warrington.
10 Local Integrated Care Partnerships, 66 Neighbourhoods
Much of someone’s life will be spent within a few miles of where they live, shopping,
working, going to school, visiting friends and family, and socialising.
Likewise, if people do need support around their health and care, friends and family are
often very involved, and people may also use their local pharmacy, GP, voluntary groups,
district nurses, community mental health services or home care staff. And sometimes they
may need a hospital visit or a care home. Some people may also link in with education,
probation, employment or social services.
Virtually all of this will happen relatively locally.
This is why our ten places and 66 neighbourhoods are at the heart of our integration work.
We’ll have local integrated care partnerships, overseen by a Board with people from the
council, NHS, voluntary sector and wider partners reflective of each place. One person – a
‘place based lead’ will coordinate all of this.

Page2 96

NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care
The NHS sees and treats thousands of people every day in Greater Manchester at its many
different services; most are in the local community, including GPs, dentists, pharmacist,
optometrists, district nursing, physiotherapy, occupational therapy, diagnostics and many
more. Some more specialised services are based in hospitals.
From July 1 a new organisation, called NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care will take
over from our 10 Clinical Commissioning Groups (which will close down their work) to
become responsible for the allocation of, and accounting for, NHS resources. It will create
and oversee a plan for all NHS services in our city region.
Sir Richard Leese has been confirmed as Chair designate and Mark Fisher as Chief
Executive designate. Staff from the new organisation will work across Greater Manchester;
some within the local partnerships and some more centrally.
Recruitment to key leadership roles
As of 20 April, the position is as follows:










Designate Chair – Sir Richard Leese
Statutory Non-Executive – Richard Paver and Shazad Sarwar
Chief Executive Officer – Mark Fisher
Chief Finance Officer – Sam Simpson
Chief Medical Director – Manisha Kumar
Chief People Officer – Janet Wilkinson
Chief Nurse – in progress
Place-based leads – in progress
Other defined executive posts will commence recruitment once a final structure has been
agreed by the Chief Executive Officer

About the new appointments
Mark Fisher – Chief Executive Officer
Working at director level for several years at the Department of
Work and Pensions, Mark currently leads the Grenfell Tower
Public Inquiry, engaging with the local community and wider
public and creating a model for similarly challenging public
inquiries.
He was previously director of the office for civil society and
innovation in the Cabinet Office, responsible for the Government’s
relationship with the voluntary and community sector, and
programme director for the award-winning Work Programme and
the Future Jobs Fund, building the regime that kept national unemployment down throughout
the 2009 recession.
Mark said: “It’s a huge privilege to be appointed as the first chief executive of NHS Greater
Manchester Integrated Care. The region has a long history of collaboration and partnership
working, and we now have a real opportunity to make further change: to better address
health inequalities, further improve clinical outcomes, and contribute to the wider social and
economic development of Greater Manchester.”

Page
97
3

Manisha Kumar – Chief Medical Director

Currently Medical Director at Manchester Health and Care
Commissioning, Manisha trained as a doctor in Manchester,
qualifying in 1995, becoming a GP in 2001 and joining the
Robert Darbishire Practice in Rusholme in 2004, where she
still practises and is a GP Trainer.
Manisha has held clinical leadership roles since 2006; working
in system redesign and development, locality and neighbourhood
roles. For the last five years she has held executive responsibility
for primary care commissioning, safeguarding and clinical
leadership – more recently focused on the response to COVID, as well being the Clinical
Senior Responsible Officer for Manchester’s COVID vaccination programme.
Manisha said: “I am really pleased to have been appointed as Chief Medical Director
Designate for NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care at such an exciting and important
time for our health and care services. The last two years have showcased how crucial
resilient, high quality care is for all of us. I am looking forward to continuing our integration
journey across Greater Manchester and supporting the critical ambition to reduce health
inequalities for our population.”
Sam Simpson – Chief Finance Officer
Having worked in the NHS for over 25 years, since joining the
North West Financial Management Training Scheme, Sam
brings extensive NHS and senior finance experience.
Sam has held senior finance roles in commissioner, provider and
strategic health authority, all in the North West. Prior to joining
Tameside and Glossop Integrated Care NHS FT, Sam was the
Director of Finance for the Cheshire and Merseyside
Sustainability Transformation Partnership.
She spent two years at Greater Manchester Police and also has experience of working in
local authorities and the education sector. Sam is currently the Chair of the Greater
Manchester NHS Provider Directors of Finance.
Sam said: “I am delighted to have been appointed as Chief Finance Officer Designate for
NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care. It is a privilege and an honour and I am looking
forward to working with partners across Greater Manchester to achieve the best we can for
our population.”

Page4 98

Janet Wilkinson – Chief People Officer
Janet is currently executive lead for workforce, OD & system
leadership at Greater Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership, who she joined as Director of Workforce in
October 2017.
Janet has been an executive director for 20 years and her most
recent post was Director of Human Resources, Organisational
Development and Education at University Hospital of South
Manchester NHS Foundation Trust.
Janet said: “I am delighted to be appointed into the role and am looking forward to leading
and supporting the Greater Manchester system in developing and implementing ambitious
people strategies, as well as creating a positive and inclusive culture for NHS Greater
Manchester Integrated Care and it’s 2,000 staff.”
Progress
The 10 Clinical Comissioning Groups in Greater Manchester, which will cease to exist from July
2022, continue to work with colleagues in Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership
and Greater Manchester Shared Services to ensure a smooth closdown process and smooth
transfer to new arrangements. This change will have no impact on where or how people receive
care.
Colleagues in all organisations are currently being consulted on arrangements to transfer
everybody beneath boardroom level into NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care. All colleagues
have also been involved in a ‘cultural audit’ to build the strong foundations for the culture of the
new organisation.
Engagement experts from Greater Manchester’s voluntary, community and faith sector, the NHS
and locality authorities came together to explore a shared involvement framework for Greater
Manchester. This is in order to develop a people and communities strategy and build on
national principles developed by NHS England.
A process has begun for the selection of a Place Lead for Health and Care Integration in each of
Greater Manchester’s 10 localities and an Equality and Inclusion (E&I) framework and strategic
E&I function for NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care is being established.
A commitment to being a leading population health system is to be further strengthened
through the formalisation of the ICS. We have been developing our population health
approach for a number of years, are a Marmot City Region and have also set out our central
commitment to tackling inequalities, through the Independent Inequalities Commission
report.
The Big Conversation
People are beginning to take part in a conversation about the future of health and care for
themselves and their families. The Big Conversation survey launched on Monday 28 March
and anyone who lives or works in the 10 Greater Manchester boroughs can take part.

Page
99
5

Running until Sunday 8 May, you can find out more about the Big Conversation at
www.gmhsc.org.uk/event/the-big-conversation and go straight to the survey by following this
link: www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/GMBigConversation

Page 100
6

